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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
..,

To the Board of Commissioners
Bulloch County, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Bulloch
County, Georgia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Bulloch County, Georgia's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Bulloch County Board of Health and the Development Authority of Bulloch County. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included for the Bulloch County Board of Health and the Development Authority of Bulloch County, is based on
the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

I
I

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of Bulloch County,
Georgia, as of June 30, 2007, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 31, 2007 on our
consideration of Bulloch County, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Audit Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 19 is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Bulloch
County, Georgia's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules
and schedule of projects paid with SPLOST proceeds are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and
schedule of projects paid with SPLOST proceeds have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

,
December 31, 2007

-4-



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Within this section of the Bulloch County, Georgia's (the "County") annual financial report, the County's
management is pleased to provide this narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the
County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The County's financial performance is discussed and
analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial statements and disclosures following this
section.

Financinl Highlights

The County had total net assets (assets exceeded liabilities) of $81,341,534 at 2007 fiscal year-end.
That is,$3,168,058 lower than the total net assets of$84,509,592 at 2006 fiscal year-end.

Total net assets are comprised of the following:

(I) Capital assets, net of related debt, of $59,202,408 include property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt related to the purchase or construction
of capital assets. The figure for fiscal year 2006 was $63,093,594. That is a decrease of $3,891,186
(or 6.2%) for fiscal year 2007.

(2) Net assets of $17,360,759 are restricted by constraints imposed tram outside the County such as
debt covenants, grantors, laws, or regulations. That is $2,300,980 (or 15.3 'I.) more than the fiscal
year 2006 amount of$ I5,059,779.

(3) Unrestricted net assets of $4,778,367 represent the portion available to maintain the County's
continuing obligations to citizens and creditors. This is a $1,577,853 (or 24.8 'I.) decrease tram the
fiscal year 2006 total of $6,356,220. Unrestricted net assets also decreased in fiscal year 2006.
Tills Ireml Is lIegallve beeallse Ille deelille of IIlIreslrleled lIel tlssels gives Ille COllllly less
filwlleltll j1exlblllly.

The County's governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $27,505,095 in fiscal year
2007, compared to $29,497,411 in fiscal year 2006. This is a decrease of $1,992,316 (or 6.8%). This
was primarily due to a $1.4 million decrease in the general fund balance and spending all of the
remaining funds in the SPLOST 89 capital projects fund ($679,136). The fiscal year 2006 ending fund
balance showed an increase of$8,267,245 (or 38.9%). The unreserved fund balance of$27,179,923 for
fiscal year 2007 is a $2,074,232 (or 7.1%) decrease tram fiscal year 2006. Unreserved fund balance of
$29,254,155 for fiscal year 2006 was an $8,255,467 (or 39.3%) increase tram the $20,998,688 in fiscal
year 2005.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $3,832,383 (or
15.0%) of total General Fund expenditures and net of other financing sources and uses. That compares
to $5,253,620 (or 22.4%) of total General Fund expenditures, net of other financing sources and uses in
fiscal year 2006. Fiscal year 2005's unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $6,539,571 (or
28.6%) of total General Fund expenditures and net of other financing sources and uses.

Overall, tile County is showing a declining am/more negative operating financial position. Overall,
in Fiscal Year 2007, Bulloch County continued to make significant investment in capital assets and
service delivery, while at the same time being under pressure to maintain optimal levels of financial
strength and liquidity. However, revenue growth has been restricted to a level consistent with the
overall Consumer Price Index, while varying segments ofoperating and capital expenditures have been
subject to escalating rates of inflation tied to commodities such as energy and building materials. This
is the result of a structural budget deficit for Bulloch County over the last six years. As a result in
Fiscal Year 2008, the Board of Commissioners must adopt a general ad valorem property tax increase
tllat includes a five-year reserve stabilization plan for the General Fund. The above financial highlights
are explained in more detail in the "financial analysis" section of this document.
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Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Bulloch County's basic financial
statements. The County's basic financial statements consist of three components; I) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic
financial statements present two different views of the County through the use of government-wide
statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains
other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of
Bulloch County.

Basic Financial Statements
.'

The first st'tements of the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements of
the County. They include a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities concerning the County
and its discretely presented component units. The government-wide financial statements are presented on
pages 20 and 21.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of the County's government. These statements provide more detail than the government
wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: I) the governmental funds
statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary
fund statements. The fund financial statements are presented on pages 22-31.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain
in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is
provided to show details about the County's non-major governmental funds, all of which are added
together in one column on the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the Official
Code of Georgia Annotated also can be found in this part of the statements.

GOllerlllllell(-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial stalements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the
County and its discretely presented component units' finances, similar in format to a financial statement of
a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about
the County and its discretely presented component units' financial stalus as a whole. The government-wide
statements report the County and its discretely presented component units' net assets and how they have
changed. Net assets are the difference between total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is one
way to gauge the County and its discretely presented component units' financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: I) governmental activities; and 2)
business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as
general government, public safety, public works" community and economic development, and community
services. Property taxes and sales taxes finance most of these activities. Also, included in governmental
activities are multiple special revenue funds where transfers are used to help fund deficits where user
cbarges are insufficient to fund the full direct costs. These activities include (among others) the airport, E
911, recreation, and solid waste disposal and convenience center operations of Bulloch County. A summary
of the County's discretely presented component units is also included. The county provides partial funding
to these units as a part of governmental activities.

The business-type activities are those that assess a charge or user fee to the customers they provide services
to. These activities include the Aquatic Center and the Agribusiness Center. The County also has an
internal service fund, which is a proprietary fund that accounts for employee paid premiums collected as
revenues, and claims paid to a third party administrator for employee health insurance related expenses.
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Flllld Fillallcial Slalelllellls

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County's most significant activities. A
fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Bulloch County, like all other governmental entities in
Georgia, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related
legal requirements or standards, such as the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. All of the funds of Bulloch
County can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County's basic services
are accoun ed for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into
cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next
year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified occrual accounting
which provides a current financial resources focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements
give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial
resources available to finance the County's programs.

The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial
statements.

Bulloch County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the Official Code of Georgia
Annotated 36-81-3. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of
the County, the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide
and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to finance
ti,ese current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how
well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in providing
the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the
budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the
legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: I) the original budget as adopted by the board;
2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending
balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual
resources and charges.

The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 22-27 of this report.

Proprietary Funds: Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report
services for which the County assesses fees or user charges. Two of the County's proprietary funds are
classified as enterprise funds: the Aquatic Center Fund and the Agribusiness Center Fund. These enterprise
funds essentially encompass the same functions reported as business-type activities in the government-wide
statements. A third proprietary fund: the Employee Insurance Fund is an internal service fund to account
for transactions for the self-funded county group health insurance plan.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements are presented on pages 28-30 of this report.

Agency Funds: Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of the Sheriff,
Emergency Medical Services, Probation, the Clerk of Courts, Probate Court, the Magistrate Court, the
Greater Statesboro Fire District and the Tax Commissioner.

The basic agency fund financial statement is presented on page 31 of this report.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 32
of this report.

Supplemelltary Itzjormatioll

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying note disclosures, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the County's budget presentations. The budgetary
comparison statement is included as a basic financial statement for the general fund. Budgetary comparison
schedules for all other governmental funds can be found in a later section of this report. These statements
and scheduies demonstrate compliance with the County's adopted and final revised budget.

During the fiscal year, the Board of Commissioners adopted by resolution several budget amendments, or
revisions, to the original budget resolutions. As discussed, the County reports major funds in the basic
financial statements. Combining and individual statements and schedules for non-major funds are presented
in this section of this report beginning on page 52.

Financial Analysis of the County as a Whole

Fillallclal Strellgth

As a part of examining the County's past financial trends, Bulloch County financial staff annually measure
key financial ratios used by both the credit industry and the Government Finance Officers Association to
determine liquidity and debt capacity. These ratios reflect the period ending June 30, 2007 for
governmental activities. Below is a description of the indicators used.

Current Ratio: This is a measure of the County's ability to meet short-term debt obligations; the higher
the ratio, the more liquid the entity is. Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities.
If the current assets of a county are more than twice the current liabilities, then that county is generally
considered to have good short-term financial strength. If current liabilities exceed current assets, then the
county may have problems meeting its short-term obligations.
Total Debt to Equity Ratio: This is a measure of the County's financial leverage calculated by dividing
long-term debt by total net assets. It indicates what proportion of equity and debt the entity is using to
finance its assets.
Working Capital (also called Net Current Assets): This is a measure of current assets minus current
liabilities. Working capital measures how much in liquid assets the County has available for operations and
growth. The number can be positive or negative, depending on how much debt is carried. In general,
counties that have a lot of working capital will be more successful since they can expand and improve their
operations and infrastructure. Counties with negative working capital may lack the funds necessary for
growth.
Current Liabilities Ratio: Current liabilities are those obligations that are currently due at the end of a
fiscal year plus the portion of long-term debt that will become due during the next fiscal year. Current
liabilities include accounts payable, short-term debt, accrued liabilities, and current maturities of long-term
debt.
Operating Position: This is a measure of the unrestricted balance or portion of net assets available, either
in the General Fund, or in an enterprise fund as a percentage of annual operating revenue. This measure
shows the ability to withstand financial emergencies or to accumulate funds for capital purchases without
having to borrow.
Ratio of General Deht Outstanding: This measure is the amount of general obligation debt in the form of
bonds backed by the full faith and credit of the government.
Debt Limit Ratio: Direct debt is bonded debt for which the local government has pledged its full faith and
credit. This long-term debt indicator uses assessed valuation in the denominator and assumes that property
taxes are the primary source of debt repayment. This indicator does not include capital lease obligations
since they are not "legal" debt.
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Legal Debt Margin: This is tbe actual amount that which the local government can pledge its full faith and
credit.
Net Overlapping Debt: The overlapping debt indicator measures the ability of O,e community's lax base
to repay the long-term general obligation debt obligations issued by all of its governmental and quasi
governmental jurisdictions. If other jurisdictions default, the community may have contingent, moral, or
political obligations to assume the debt, provide the services, or both.
Net Direct Long-Term Debt Per Capita: This measure indicates the net direct obligation of total general
obligation debt divided by the population of the community.

2007 2006 2007
Financilll Strength Ratios Governmental Governmental Standard Adherence to

Aclivities Activities Standard

Current Ratio 5.9 8.8 2.0 or > Positive

Tolal Debt to Equity Ratio 0.201 0.178 1.0or< Positive

Working Capital 526,235,357 529,320,804 NA Positive

Current Liabilities Ratio 0.074 0.044 0.05 or < NcgDlive

Operating Position 0.158 0.237 0.25 or > Negative

Ratio of General Debt Outstanding 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% Positive

Debt Limit Ratio 0.0% 0.0% 0,0% NA

Legal Debl Margin 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% Positive

Net Overlapping Debt S28,525,000(2) 515,450,000 (2) NA NA

Net Direct Long-Term Debt Per Capita SO.OO 50.00 NA NA

(1) NA . Not applicable.
(2) Bulloch County Board of Education-IOO%.

Upon examining Bulloch County financial ratios against developed standards, it's noted that with exception
to current liabilities and operating position, the other ratios indicate favorable or positive financial strength.
II sltol/III be lIoled Iltallite lIegalil'e declillillg Irelld ill BlIllocll COIlIlIy's cl/rrell/liabililies illdicales a
greater reliance 011 sltort (erm debt (0 fillld currelll operations, and tile negative declining trcnd ill

operalillg positioll lias bem ill place for 01 leasl Ille lasl sel'ell fiscal years alld illdicates a slruclllral
bmlget deficil. It sllol/Id be lIotedfllrlller 11101 allfillallcial ratios are SllOlVillg declilles.

SlImmary ofNet Assels

As noted earlier, Bulloch County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance
related legal requirements. The County implemented the new financial reporting model used in this report
beginning with fiscal year 2003. As year-to-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis,
changes in net assets will be observed and used to discuss the changing financial position of the County as
a whole. The County had total nel assets (assets exceeded liabilities) of$81 ,341 ,534 at 2007 fiscal year-end
compared to the fiscal year 2006 figure of $84,509,592. The following table provides a summary of the
County's net assets: .
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Summrary of Net Assets

Governmental A('tivities DU.'liiness-Type Acth'ities Total Perceotage of
Tolal

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Ass,ts

Curren! AsselS 31,609,015 33,080,400 818,202 619,491 32,427,217 33,699,891 32.3% 32.8%

Capilal Assels 60,289,143 61,169,354 7,560,374 7,876,327 67,849,517 69,045,681 67.7% 67.2%

Tatnl Assets 91.898.158 94,249,754 8,378.576 8,495,818 100,276,734 102,745,572 100.0% 100.0%

Liabilities

Curren! Liabilities 5.373.658 3.759,596 4,615 33,089 5.378,273 3.792.685 28.4% 20.8%

Long-Tcnn Linb.ilities 13,556,927 14,443,295 13.556.927 14,443,295 71.6% 79.2%

TOf~1 Liabilities 18,930,585 18,202.891 4.615 33,089 18,935,200 18,235,980 100.0% 100.0%

Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assels, Net of Debl 51,642.034 55.217,266 7,560.374 7,876,327 59,202.408 63,093,593 72.8% 74.7%

Restricled - Capital Projects 15.830,504 13,560,181 15,830.504 13,560,181 19.4% 16.0%,

Restricted - Other Purposes 1,530.255 1,499,598 1,530,255 1,499,598 1.9% 1.8%

Unrestricted 3.964,780 5,769,818 813,587 586,402 4,778,367 6,356,220 5.9% 7.5%

Total Net Assets 72,967,573 76,046,863 8,373,961 8,462,729 81,341,534 84,509,592 100.0% ]00.0%

The County reported positive balances in net assets for both governmental and business-type activities. Net
assets for fiscal year 2007 decreased by $3.079,290 (or 4.0%) for governmental activities, and decreased by
$88,768 (or 1.0%) for business-type activities.

Note that in fiscal year 2007 and in fiscal year 2006, respectively 70,8% and 72,6% of the governmental
activities' net assets were tied up in capital assets, This documents that the County continues to invest
adequately in the capital assets needed to provide services, while meeting its ongoing operating expenses.
On the business type activities, the County has spent 90.3% in fiscal year 2007, and 93.1 % in fiscal year
2006 of its net assets on capital. This is not unusual. as the County's business type activities are unique and
very capital intensive operations. Expansion oftllese systems is necessary for the continued growth of these
enterprises and their added value to the local economy. 72,8% in fiscal year 2007, and 74,7% in fiscal year
2006 of the County's total net assets were included in capital assets,
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Summary ofChongcs 10 Net Assets

2007 2006

Governmenlol Business
Activities Activities

Totol Percentnge Governmental Business
ofToInI Activities Activities

Totol Percentoge
ofToIn1

10,469,008 1,277,859

2,522,973

961,058

9,389,379 1,261,948

2,403,231

833,540

Program R~veDues

Fees, Fines, Charges for Services

Operating Gronts and Contributions

Capital Grants nnd Contributions

Genernl Revenues

Taxes

Olher

Totnl Revenues

Progrum Expenses

Geneml Government

Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

SilOitaUon

Health and Welfare

Libraries and Recreation

Airport

Housing nnd Development

Intergovernmental

Interest

Aquatic Cenler

Agribusiness Cemer

Tolal Expenses

Excess (Deficiency)

Transfers

ChWlge in Net Assets

Prior Period Adjustment

Beginning Net Assets

Ending Net Assets

24,180,219

2,275,298

41,008,616

3,816,609

2.675,866

13,490,214

8,925,381

1,939,683

314,163

3,965,491

105,058

2,300,454

5,256,533

674,462

44,123,926

(3,115,310)

36,020

(3,019,290)

11,208,525

58,838,338

72.967,573

22,651

1,300,510

1,180,493

112,165

1,353,258

(52,148)

(36,020)

(88,168)

8,462.729

8,373,961

11,146,861

2,522,973

961,058

24,180,219

2,297,949

42,309,126

3,816,609

2,615,866

13,490,214

8,925,381

1,939,683

314,163

3,965,491

705,058

2,300,454

5,256,533

614,462

1,180,493

112,165

45,477,184

(3,168,058)

(3,168,058)

11,208,525

61,301,061

81,341,534

27.8%

6.0%

2.3%

58.5%

5.4%

100.0%

8.4%

5.9%

29.7%

19.6%

4.3%

.8%

8.7%

1.5%

5.1%

11.5%

1.5%

2.6%

0.4%

100.0%

23,189,284

1,455,521

37,270,967

3,044,111

2,311,138

13,328,146

3,440,966

1,881,113

352,219

3,885,998

591,260

1,093,366

3,980,348

194,496

34,122,961

3,148,006

(29,343)

3,118,663

(1,319,212)

51,038,881

58,838,338

14,915

1,282,863

1,120,527

148,500

1,269,021

13,836

29,343

43,179

(22,586)

8,442,136

8,462,129

10,651,321

2,403,231

833,540

23,189,284

1,410,442

38,553,830

3,044,111

2,311,138

13,328,746

3,440,966

1,881,113

352,219

3,885,998

591,260

1,093,366

3,980,348

194,496

1,120,521

148,500

35,391,988

3,161,842

3,161,842

(1,341,198)

65,481,023

61,301,061

27.7%

6.2%

2.2%

60.1%

3.8%

100.0%

8.6%

6.5%

37.7%

9.7%

5.3%

1.0%

11.0%

1.7%

3.1%

11.2%

0.6%

3.2%

0.4%

100.0%

Governmental Activities: ReveJlues

Bulloch County is one of only eight counties out of 159 in Georgia that do not receive any of Ihe I% Local
Option Sales Tax (LOST). A local Constitutional Amendment was passed by Ihe Georgia General
Assembly in the 1981 Session (Georgia Laws, 1981, p. 1931) which called for a referendum on the
question of whether or not the local option sales lax should go 10 the Bulloch County Board of Educalion,
wilh a dollar for dollar reduction in the school property lax. The referendum passed on November 2, 1982.
Since Ihat lime, this money has gone to the Board of Education. Since most Georgia counties and cilies
negotiate a formula 10 distribule LOST proceeds among themselves, the absence of this availability pUiS
Bulloch County's basic unilS of local government al a distinct disadvantage relalive to almost all the other
cities and counties in Ihe state. Ultimately, it means that we have to rely more heavily on the local property
lax and user fees than these other cities and counties. For example, if Ihe county and municipal
governments had split this approximalely $9,000,000 in local oplion sales taxes in fiscal year 2007, Bulloch
County could have polentially realized $4,500,000 in additional revenue.

However, Bulloch County and ils municipalities do share the proceeds of a I% Special Purpose Local
Option Sales Tax (SPLOST), which has passed referendums successively in 1997 and 2002 for five-year
terms; and 2007 for a six-year term. At firsl glance it appears Ihal the County is heavily reliant on sales
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taxes to support governmental operations. In fiscal year 2006, sales taxes of$9,714,763 out of$37,270, 122
in total governmental funds revenues, or 26.1 %, were received from the 2002 SPLOST. However, all of
that money was spent on capital outlay, not operating costs, as the SPLOST funds are earmarked by state
law specifically for capital outlay only. Similarly, in fiscal year 2007, $10,568,124 in sales taxes
represented 25.8% of the $40,897,494 in governmental funds revenues.

Because of its healthier financial position, comparative to many other counties, and its investment proceeds
from the local Hospital Authority corpus, Bulloch County has been able to earn $ I,516,889 in fiscal year
2007, and $865,833 in fiscal year 2006, in interest to support governmental activities. Also, note that
program revenues covered 31.6% in fiscal year 2007, and 37.0% in fiscal year 2006 of governmental
operating expenses. This means that the government's taxpayers and the other general revenues funded the
remaining 68.4% in fiscal year 2007, and 63.0% in fiscal year 2006 of the governmental activities.

;

Property taxes are an important source of revenue to Bulloch County's General Fund. In fiscal year 2007,
property tax revenues were $12,003,113 (or 49.5% of total revenues), in fiscal year 2006, $11,197,343 (or
50.5% of total revenues), and in fiscal year 2005, $10,758,097 (or 49.6% of total revenues). This further
illustrates the County's high dependence on property tax sources noted above.

Gover1lmental Activities: Fl/llcliollal E\:pellses

Public safety is the county's largest functional cost, comprising 30.6% of the County's total governmental
activity expenses and 29.7% oftOlal County expenses. In fiscal year 2006, those figures were 39.1% and
37.7% respectively. In fiscal year 2007, general government totals 8.6% of the total governmental activity
expense, and 8.4% of the total County expenses. In fiscal year 2006, general government totaled 8.9% of
the total governmental activity expenses, and 8.6% of the total County expenses indicating the County's
commitment to minimize the cost of administrative support services in favor of providing direct services to
its citizens.

The following table presents the cost of each of the County's programs, including the net costs (i.e., total
cost less revenues generated by the activities). The net costs illustrate ti,e financial burden tlmt was placed
on the County's taxpayers by each of these functions.

Governmental Activities

2007 2006

Total Cost of Net Cost of Totol Cost of Net Cost of
Serviccs Services Services Services

General Government 3,816,609 (1,684,916) 3,044,11 I (991,633)

Judicial 2,675,866 (2,151,701) 2,317,738 (1,658,867)

Public Safety 13,490,214 (7,168,643) 13,328,746 (8,156,887)

Public Works 8,925,387 (8,360,434) 3,440,966 (2,689,325)

Snnilntion 1,939,683 (1,104,914) 1,887,713 (1,238,340)

Health and Welfare 374,163 (374,163) 352,219 (352,219)

Libraries and Rccrcalion 3,965,497 (2,321,683) 3,885,998 (2,359,677)

Airport 705,058 (118,938) 597,260 21,575

Housing and Development 2,300,454 (1,677,479) 1,093,366 (572,265)

Intergovernmental 5,256,533 (4,533,554) 3,980,348 (3,304,671)

Interest 674,462 (674,462) 194,496 (194,496)

Total 44,123,926 (30,170,887) 34,122,961 (21,496,805)

For fiscal year 2007, all functions, required a subsidy from general revenues comprising 68.4% of all
expenses. For fiscal year 2006, all functions except the Airport, required a subsidy from general revenues
comprising 63.0% of all expenses.
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Business-Type Activities: ReveJlues vs. Expenses

For fiscal year 2007, the aggregate operating revenues for the county enterprise funds were .8% above 2006
and operating expenses were 6.6% above fiscal year 2006. Within the total business type activities of the
County, these activities reported aggregate operating losses of $75,399 compared to operating losses of
$1,079 in fiscal year 2006. However, after transfers in and out between other funds, these funds reported a
combined loss of $88,768 in fiscal year 2007 compared to a profit of $43, 179 in fiscal year 2006.

Business-Type Activities: Opera ling Income (Loss)

2007 2006

Percent Change Amount

Aquutic Center Fund

Agribusincss Center Fund

Amount

$20.177

($95,576)

(70.9%)

(35.9%)

$69,232

($70,311 )

Percent Change

263.8%

(59.7%)

Operating income before transfers for the Aquatic Center Fund (Splash in the 'Boro) decreased
significantly in fiscal year 2007 with operating revenues increasing 0.9%, while operating expenses
increased 5.4%, resulting in a 70.9% decrease in annual operating income. The changes in the level of
federal minimum wage requirements authorized by Congress in mid-2007 are likely to continue to affect
operating margins over the next couple of years, unless the revenue volume increases.

The operating income for the Agribusiness Center Fund continued to significantly decrease in fiscal year
2007 as operating revenues declined 1.3%, while operating expenses before depreciation increased by
33.6%, resulting in a 35.9% increase in its annual operating loss. The current operations consist of rental
income to help support the 30,000 square foot office complex which houses several agribusiness related
governmental entities. The rental is largely subsidized to the extent that direct operating expenses are
covered, and depreciation is not factored into rental prices. However, as the future development of the
Phase II mixed-use arena proceeds, it is expected that within three years a new stream of revenue will be
established which will aid in improving fund solvency.

The County also began transferring resources from the business-type activities beginning in fiscal year
2006. $29,380 was transferred out of the Aquatic Center Fund to the Parks and Recreation Fund and $6,640
was transferred out of the Agribusiness Center Fund to the general fund in 2007. The County transfers
resources between its business-type funds and its governmental funds for the following reasons:

• The County has developed a formula based allocation for charges to its enterprise funds that take
the form of transfers out of these funds to help cover the costs of overhead services from the
General Fund or other governmental funds. These costs include the various staff departments, such
as personnel, finance, purchasing, and records, as well as part of the County Manager's time. If
these enterprise funds were privately owned, the County would be entitled to property taxes on the
property in service, net of accumulated depreciation, similar to other private service providers.
These transfers are made in lieu of property taxes ..

• Periodically, capital improvements or investments must be made to enhance the use by the
customers and occupants of these facilities. Where appropriated, the Board of Commissioners
makes available budgeted resources for transfers into these enterprise funds from the Special
Purpose Local Option Sales Tax for these enhancements. This relieves subsidies from property tax
payers who commit resources through the General Fund. Because at least one-third of all sales
taxes are generated from consumers living outside of Bulloch County, these consumers in fact
provide additional tax relief for county taxpayers who may otherwise have to commit local dollars
toward the improvement of these facilities.

• Since the County's taxpayers are in fact the investors who started and financed these operations,
they are being rewarded with a comparable return on equity in the form of lower property taxes.
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This return can be made while still maintaining fee or user charges that are at or below the market
prices offered by comparable private companies.

• Hosting a sizable regional university and numerous other governmental and non-profit entities
results in a considerable amount of property not being subject to property taxation. However,
services such as emergency services, courts, road improvements and repair, and sanitation must be
provided and expanded as needed, and must be funded from general revenues. Transfers between
the enterprise funds and the General Fund help offset this burden, while sharing it more equitably
among all citizens and institutions.

Financial Analysis of the County's Funds

Goverllmefltal Fllllds

As discussed, governmental funds are reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow
of spendable resources focus. This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the
year in comparison with upcoming financing requirements. Governmental funds reported ending fund
balances of$27,505,095 in fiscal year 2007, compared to $29,497,411 in fiscal year 2006, and $21,230,166
in fiscal year 2005. Of these year-end totals, $27,179,923 in fiscal year 2007, $29,254,155 in fiscal year
2006, and $20,998,688 in fiscal year 2005 was unreserved indicating availability for continuing County
service requirements.

The tolal ending fund balances of governmental funds show a decrease in fiscal year 2007 of $1 ,992,316
(6.8 %) compared to an increase in fiscal year 2006 of $8,267,245 (or 38.9%).

Tolal taxes in governmental funds were $1,673,258 or 7.2% higher than in fiscal year 2006. The major
change was due to a significant increase in SPLOST revenue collections (8.8% increase; $853,361) and an
increase of $805,770 or 7.2% in property taxes. Charges for services showed strength by increasing in
fiscal year 2007 to $7,249,319 from $6,473,221 (or 12.0%).

The governmental funds' expenditures increased by $4,034,206, or 10.1 %, in fiscal year 2007, compared to
a increase of $3,898,408, or 10.8%, in fiscal year 2006. The fiscal year 2007 increase was due primarily to
a greater investment in capital outlays than in fiscal year 2006. The fiscal year 2007 increase related
primarily to increases in Public Safety, both for operating expenses and capital ourlays; Public Works
operating expenses; capital outlays for water and sewer service to the new industrial park; and
intergovernmental expenditures to other local governments within the County for capital improvements.

The County's overall cash flow can vary greatly from month to monlh. The reason for this is that property
lax revenues, which consist of approximately one-half of General Fund revenue stream, peak during the
December-February time line. While other General Fund revenues come in during months when property
taxes do not, there exists an declining cash flow environment from March to November. This is why having
a standard of 25% of expenditures in the General Fund balance is crilical. The standard provides adequate
cash flow to handle these monthly fluctuations, while providing a cushion against any major unexpected
events, with a residual benefit of improving the County's credit rating when it needs to borrow. As a result
of the structural budget deficit over the last several years, it is anticipated tlmt the County will need to
assume tax anticipation notes for a period projected through at least fiscal 20 II, costing an estimated sum
of$75,000 in cumulative interest payments.

Major Goverllmental Funds

The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service
delivery. The General Fund's fund balance decreased by $1,400,421 in fiscal year 2007 and by $1,274,173
in fiscal year 2006. Again, this is due to a long-term structural budget deficit where operating revenues and
transfers in have been insufficient in keeping up with operating expenses and transfers out.
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Tile Proprietary FIII/ds

The proprietary funds statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, reporting both
short-term and long-term information about financial status. Each of the fund statements give detailed
information about their financial condition, in addition to the Financial Analysis of the County as a Whole.

JlIleTllal Sen'ice Fllnd

The Employee Insurance Internal Service Fund had a decrease in net assets of $308, 179 for the year ended
June 30, 2007 because of a significant increase in claims paid compared to fiscal year 2006. Claims
expense insreased $801,814 or 58.2% during fiscal year 2007. This fund had ending net assets of $48,207
at June 30, 2007 compared to $356,386 at the end of fiscal year 2006.

Agency Fnnds

An agency fund is used to account for assets held for other funds, governments or individuals. Bulloch
County maintains eight agency funds. A statement of fiduciary assets and liabilities for the agency funds is
presented on page 31.

Budgetary Highlights

Tile General Fnnd - Overall, the County recognized revenues equal to $1,523,361 or 6.7% above
budgeted revenues in the appropriated budget. Overall, the County recognized expenditures equal to
$402,247, or only 1.8% above budgeted expenditures in the appropriated budget.

On the revenue side of the budget, charges for services and intergovernmental revenue were considerably
higher than the budgeted amount.

On the expenditure side, tlle most significant negative variances were in the Public Safety function,
particularly in the Sheriffs Department, Emergency Medical Service and Fire Protection; and in Public
Works.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capilal Assets

The County's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental and business
type activities as of June 30, 2007 was $60,289,143 and $7,560,374 respectively, for a total of$67,849,517.
That compares to fiscal year 2006 numbers of $61,169,355 and $7,876,327 respectively, for a total of
$69,045,682.

The fiscal year 2007 totals in this net investment decreased by 1.4% for governmental activities and
decreased by 4.0% for business-type activities. The overall decrease was 1.7% for the County as a whole.
The decrease in the governmental activities investment is explained below. See Note 7 for additional
information about changes in capital assets during the fiscal year and outstanding at the end of tlle year.
The following table provides a summary of capital asset activity.

Non-dcprcciable Assets

LDnd

Construction in Progress

Totnl Non-Depreciable

Capital Assets
Gonrnmenfal Activities Business Activities Tolal

2007 2006 2007 200G 2007 2006

1.956,488 1,745,413 329,177 329,177 2,285,665 2,074,590

3,441,599 2,072,981 3,441,599 2,072,981

5,398,087 3,818,394 329,177 329,177 5.727,264 4,147,571
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Depreciable Assels

Buildings 23,975,360 23,862,555 6,647,188 6,643,973 30,622,548 30,506,528

Improvements Dlher Than Buildings 7,677,094 7,136,644 1,179,703 1,179,703 8,856,797 8,316,347

Machinery nnd Equipment 17,535,112 16,610,208 438,833 430,572 17,973,945 17,040,780

lnrrastructure 111,006,621 107,835,873 111,006,621 107,835,873

Total Depreciable Assets 160,194,187 155,445,280 8,265,724 8,254,248 168,459,911 163,699,528

Less Accumulated Depreciation 105,303,131 98,094,319 1,034.527 707,098 106,337,658 98,801,417

Book Value: Depreciable Assets 54,891,056 57,350,961 7,231,197 7,547,150 62,122,253 64,898,111

Percentage Depreciated 65.7% 63.1% 12.5% 8.6% 63.1% 60.4%

Total Book Value 60,289,143 61,169,355 7,560,374 7,876,327 67,849,517 69,045,682

The County began reporting its governmental infrastructure constructed each year in fiscal year 2003. The
major increase in infrastructure between fiscal year 2007 and fiscal year 2006 is the addition or
improvement of several miles of newly-constructed roads.

The major increase for construction in progress continues to be road and bridge improvements county-wide
and the current expansion ofthe County Jail-Detention Center.

In the County's business type activities, 12.5% of the asset values were depreciated at June 30, 2007,
compared to 8.6% for fiscal year 2006.

At June 30, 2007, the depreciable capital assets for governmental activities were 65.7% depreciated. This
percentage is more than the fiscal year 2006 amount of 63, I%, Tlzis Ire",1 illdicales, Ihal overall, Ihe
COllnty is replacing capital assets at fl rate that is below depreciatioll expense. However, it sholll'l be
notet! t!lat the COllnty !las been aggressil1ely replacing or improving infrastrllcture, machinery,
eqllipmellt and infrastructllre at all accelerated pace to keep pace ",it!l C01ll1111lllity growth.

LOllg-lerm Debl

All of the County's long-term outstanding debt and notes payable rests exclusively within its governmental
activities, primarily in the General Fund, and the 2002 and 2007 Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax
Funds, The County's business-type activities comprised of enterprise funds reported no outstanding long
term debt or notes payable either in fiscal year 2007 or 2006,

The governmental activities reported capital leases of $14,094,260, a net decrease of $269,342 or 1.9%
from 2006. The notes payable for the water and sewer for Phase I of Gateway Regional Industrial Park
were reduced by $53,140, or 8.1 % to $600,730, Compensated absences increased by $83,563 or 22.5% in
fiscal year 2007 to $455,732.

Long-Tenn Debt Obligations.

GO\'ernmental Activities

2007 2006

Capital LeilSCS 14,094,260 14,363,602

Notes Pnynble 600,730 653,870

Compensated Absences 455,732 372,169

Tow) 15,150,722 15,389,641

Witll the exception noted in overlapping debt for the Bulloch County Board of Education, Bulloch County
has no existing general obligation debt. For both governmental and business type-activities, Blllloch
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COUlIly has $14,694,990 of oll/stalldillg 101lg-term debt ill the form of capital leases alld 1I0tes payable,
less compensated absences. Since 1994, the county has entered into various capital lease agreements for
equipment. As they exist, they are expected to be paid off by 2021. There is one note payable to the
Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority with an outstanding principal amount of $600,730 with
maturity occurring in 2016. This note was for the construction of a water tank and water line extensions at
Gateway Industrial Park whereby the County pays the City of Statesboro for two-thirds of the payment.
The largest obligation resides in the current Jail-Detention Center Expansion. However, under the 2007
SPLOST referendum, the Jail lease-financing is planned to be paid off by July 2009, assuming the
projected revenue collection schedule is met.

III Slim, the greater relhmce 011 capital leasillg for machlllery allll eqllipmelll is the resll/l of the
aballilolllllent of a prior practice whereby operatillg ([epartments previously escrowed machinery allll
equipmelllreplacemelli needs through a Gelleral Fund sub-accolillt, anti further symptomatic of lite
structural bllllget deficit previously described IVlticlt restrIcts available caslt flolV for ''pay-as-you-go''
expensing. However, while it Is likely that lease /inancing will cOlltinue to be lIsed wilen practical alit!
advantageous to tile County, tile Reserve Stabilizatioll Plan includes a provision to acclllllulate and
desigllate 10% ofescrolVedfll/Ills for pay-as-you-go purcltases.

Economic Conditions Affecting the County

According to key economic indicators, the 2007 fiscal year saw Bulloch County's local economy perfonn
relatively well, but may be showing signs ofcoming off a peak. From a long-term perspective, the national
and state economies may be significantly affected by many factors, including a growing national debt and
trade deficit, monetary issues and health care costs, inflation, increased demands on Social Security as
baby-boomers near retirement, a certain downturn of the housing market, threat/acts of terrorism and
geopolitical instability in the Middle East.

Guarded optimism best describes Bulloch County's current economic outlook. In the first half of Fiscal
Year 2008, the County should realize stable, but declining economic growth compared to last year, as new
employment growth which has been led by construction activity and the service sectors cool. Ye~ Bulloch
County continues to see residential growth and commercial development including multiple new residential
subdivisions and growing commercial corridors near Statesboro including Highway 80 Wes~ Highway 67
South, and the area adjacent to East Georgia Regional Hospital between Veteran's Memorial Highway and
Fair Road (aka the Market District). The downtown areas of Statesboro and Brooklet continue to U,rive
and expand with U,e help of directed efforts toward improvements and beautification. Georgia Southern
University continnes its steady planned enrollment and campus expansion. Bulloch County also continued
its commitment to nUlture existing industry and businesses that complement its existing business mix,
while also planning tor new strategies for developing economic incentives for businesses. Both Briggs and
Stratton and Viracom have expanded their manufacturing operations in Bulloch County. The Wal-Mart
Distribution Center remains the most active high-volume warehousing center of its kind within the
corporation. The four-year old county-operated Splash in the 'Boro Aquatic Center had outstanding
opening of its first four seasons drawing over 60 percent of its nearly 100,000 annual customers from
outside Bulloch County. Finally, being on the boundaty of the Savannah metropolitan area offers
advantages to Bulloch County from a regional perspective. The Savannah MSA is poised to be among the
state's fastest growing regions in 2007 and 2008, especially in the economic sectors related to job growth,
tourism, retail, real estate and finance, infornlation services and the expanding activity of the Port of
Savannah which will spur the construction of additional warehouse space for processing for import-export
distribution.

In order for Bnlloch County to retain its excellent quality of life advantages, the community will have to
address many critical issues on its horizon. These issues include the likelihood of gradual shifting within
the County's economic base as windfall tax revenues ITom industrial growth during the last decade is offset
from increasing growth in the retail, services and construction sectors. Another challenge is to continue
industrial growth because of intense competition by other communities in the region for new economic
development projects.
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The following key economic indicators reflect the economic condition of the County.
• Population growth remains at a steady annual growth level of 2.0%. Bulloch County population in

April 2007 is estimated at 63,207. The 2000 Census enumerated a county population of 55,983.
• The Consumer Price Index for the Urban South Consumers decreased from 7.8% to 4.7% between

June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2007, largely as the result of the cooling of higher prices for energy and
construction activities.

• The annual average unemployment rate for Bulloch County in calendar year 2006 was 4.2% which was
below the average of2005 at 4.3%, and is slightly below the State average unemployment rate of 4.3%
which remained the same as the prior year.

• The county's employed workforce increased from 29,125 to 30,341 from 2005 to 2006, a 4.2%
increase, but a lower rate of growth compared to a 5.3% increase from 2004 to 2005.

• The ad.valorem tax rate for Fiscal Year 2007 was set at 10.44 mills, which was a increase from 8.627
mills ift Fiscal Year 2006 to correct the structural budget deficit.

• Per capita income for Bulloch County has increased from $19,981 in 2004 to $20,866 in 2005, or
4.4%, thus, while showing marked improvement over 2004, it is still growing below the rate of the
Urban-South Consumer Price Index, signaling that there is less purchasing power for county citizens.

• County business activity is mixed. County sales taxes collections in FY 2007 increased by 8.8% from
$9,714,763 to $10,568,214, but is lower than the 13.1% increase in FY 2005. Single-family building
permits increased dramatically in Bulloch County and its municipalities from 525 units in Calendar
Year 2005 to 867 units in 2006, or a 65.1% increase. However, the projection for Calendar Year end
2007 will be 750 new units, or a 13.5% decrease. Total deposits in financial institutions in Bulloch
County increased from $843.6 million in 2005 to $999.7 million in 2006, or 18.5%.

• Model based estimates indicate that the poverty rate in Bulloch County has dropped from 24.5% in
1999 to 19.5% in 2004.

Despite some mixed results, Bulloch County has a growing population and economy influenced by a strong
industrial base, a growing regional public university and medical center with increasing medical specialties,
a regional retail base and potential spin-off growth from the greater Savannah area. The manufacturing and
wholesale sectors show promise for long-term future growth. The completed installation of new water and
sewer lines and expansion and widening of the A.J. Riggs secondary access road in Phase II of the Gateway
Regional Industrial Park, will give the County's Development Authority over 300 acres of immediately
marketable land for industrial expansion. Our short-term projection going forward is that the statewide
economy will continue to moderate, but virtually all segments of the local and regional economy, with the
possible exception of construction which is in apparent decline, will experience some marginal overall
growth in fiscal year 2008.

Summary

In summary, at the close of June 30, 2007, Bulloch County government currently has adequate and
favorable financial strength, liquidity, a strong capital asset base and minimal debt, comparable to other
counties of its size in Georgia.

However, its operating position, particularly in the key General Fund, has declined dramatically over the
last six fiscal years where fund balance has declined from $9.7 million at the close of fiscal year 2001, to
$4.1 million at the close of fiscal year 2007 (or 58%). This is due again to a convergence of factors that
resulted from an annual structural budget deficit where recurring revenues were not sufficient to meet
recurring expenditures. This condition existed despite the appearance of growth in the county's population
and economy.

In fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007, tile County attempted to restrict expenditure growth by reducing
employee wage increases and deferring or eliminating certain operating and capital expenditures. To
leverage cash flow, the County instituted limited purchases of needed machinery and equipment through
capital or operating leases. Several County departments also raised fees and users charges where discretion
prevailed, to cover the full cost of providing the service. Furthermore, the County has consolidated and
centralized administrative functions such as human resources and purchasing, and has audited operations
for better efficiencies. However. the increasing demand for services by local citizens, unfunded mandates
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from higher levels of government for additional services, and extmordinary inflation in gasoline and
construction prices have offset these austerity measures.

Ultimately, this will result in the aforementioned ad valorem tax increase in Fiscal Year 2008. If this trend
were to continue without correction, Bulloch County's fund balance could be exhausted by fiscal year
20 I0, thus severely affecting its operational capabilities.

Proposed Fivc-Yenr Reserve Stubilizlllion Plan

Fisenl Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Projected Escro,w Funds ($) 406,000 780,000 811 ,000 844,000 877,000 912,000

FYE Fund Balance ($ in mil.) 4.096 4.876 5.687 6.531 7.408 8.320

Projected Budget ($ in mil.) 28.94 30.00 31.2 32.45 33.75 35.1

FYE Fund Balance Ratio (%) /4.2 16.3 18.2 20.1 21.9 23.7

Upon passage of the proposed tax increase, the County will adopt a reserve stabilization plan for the next
five fiscal years to rebuild the General Fund balance to approximate the ideal level of25% of revenues. The
County will be looking at four key implementation items in fiscal years 2008 to improve both general
efficiency and financial reporting. They are:

• Fully implement the consolidation of general banking services with a single financial institution in
order to improve treasury management initiated at the close ofFY 2007.

• Initiate an electronic timekeeping system to improve the accuracy and operation of payroll
services.

• Utilize the aforementioned initiatives to progress toward true fund accounting and a full fledged
modified accrual accounting system.

• Continue to improve the consolidated purchasing function initiated in FY 2007 which includes the
task of entering encumbrances electronically into the accounting system, thus, giving more
accurate monthly financial reporting.

Currently, the County's special revenue, enterprise and internal fund structures are operating mostly in a
favorable condition. However, these funds must also be closely monitored to minimize, or in many cases
avoid increased subsidies by the General Fund.

Contacting the Connty's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances, comply with
finance-related laws and regulations, and demonslrate the County's commitment to public accountability. If
you have questions about this report or would like to request additional information, you may contact:

Thomas M. Couch
County Manager

James. H. Starling
Chief Financial Officer

115 North Main Street
Statesboro, Georgia, 30459
(9 I2) 764-6245
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30. "007

Primary Government Component Units
Govcrnmcntal Busincss-type Bulloch County Dcvelopmcnt Authority

Activities Activities Total Board of I-Icllith of Bulloch Countv
ASSETS
Current A5sds:
Cash S 28,497,093 S 1.267.609 S 29.764,702 S 1,212,435 S 631,9]6
Receivables:

Tn;<es 37],615 373,635
lmergovanmental 1,151.8]7 1,151,8]7 116,377
Internal balances 449,407 (449,407)
Other 656,081 656,081

Due from componem rtnit 134,450 134,450
Prepaid items 294,279 294,279
Inventorics 52,233 52,233

Tolnl Current Assets ]1.609.015 818.202 32,427,217 1.328.812 6]1.936

Cnpillli Assets:
Noudepreciable capitol assets 5,398,087 329,177 5,727,264 5,055,507
Depreciable capital 05sets, IIct 54,891.056 7.231.197 62.122.253 136.439 3.942.469

Total Capllnl Asscts 60,289.14] 7.560,374 67.849,517 136.439 8.997.976

Totnl Assets 91.898.158 8,378.576 100,276,734 1.465.251 9,629,91"'

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payablc 2,974,492 2,974.492 11,597
AccRled cxpenses 515,167 4.615 519,782
Unearned revenue 5,625 5,625
Due to primiU)' GO~'ernment 134,450
Due to other governments 44,5]5
Claims payable 199,679 199,679
Other liabililes 84,900 84,900 42,704
Compensated absences paynblc 91,146 91,146 82,672
Capitallenscs payable 1,446,735 1,446,735
Notes payable 55,914 55,914

TUlnl Current Liabilities 5,373,658 4.615 5,378.273 127,207 185.751
Long.Term Liabilities:
Compcll5:ltcd :Ibsences payable fnet of current portion) ]64,586 364,586
Cnpitallcases payable (net of current ponion) 12.647,525 12,647,525
Notes payable (net ofeurrent portion) $44.816 544,816

Total LOIl~-TermLi:tbililies 13.556.927 13.556,927

TOI:t1 Liabilities 18,930.585 4.615 18,935,200 127,207 185.751

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets. lIet of related debt 51,642,034 7,560,374 59,202,408 136,439 8,997,976
Restricted for:
Capital projccts 15,830,504 15,1130,504
Other purposcs 1,530,255 1,530,255 504,610

Unrestricted 3.964.780 813.587 4.778.]67 696.995 446.185

Tot:tl Nt:! Assets S 72,967,573 S 8.373,961 S 81.341,534 S 1,338,044 S 9.444.161

See accompanying notcs to thc basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGlA
STATEMENT OF AcnvmES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE )0. 2001

Net (Expense) Rev!:nuc and
ProlU'Um R~=ues Chanl!.es in Net A.ucts

Primary Go\'Crnmml Con:poneolt Units
Fee$, Fines. and OpcrntinSGmnts Capital Grants Governmental Business.type Dulloch County Dl:\Ielopmcnt Authorily

PrOl!.r.unlFunction Expm~ Chanl.es for Senices lLIld Contributions IllId Contribution.s Acti,ilies Activities TOlal ' Doan! of Health of Bulloch Countv
Prinutl")' Government
Government:!1 Aclivitiell

General governmenl S 3,816,609 S 761,475 1.310,218 S (1,684,916) S (1,684,916)
Judiciol 2,615,866 509,115 15,050 (2,151,701) (2,151,701)
Public safety 13,490,214 5,938,1)6 21,765 S 355,070 (7,16B,60) (7,168,643)
Public works 8,925,387 187,838 377,115 (8,360,434) (8,360,434)
Snnililtion 1,939,683 594,728 240,041 (1,104,914) (1,104,914)
Heahh and welfare 374,163 (374,163) (374,163)
Rccrealioo 3,434,370 1,407,732 61,311 174,771 (1,190,556) (1,790,556)
Libraries 531,127 (531,121) (531,127)
Airpon 705,058 532,018 54,102 (1I8,9JB) (118,938)
Holl5ing IllId development 2,300,454 537.J66 85,609 (1,677.479) (1,677,419)
IntergO\'emmenlnl 5,2.56,5)3 7'22.919 (4,533,55-1) (4,5)),55-1)
Inte"c:st 674.462 (614,462) (6701.4621

To~1 ~o......... m..ola1.etl..ilIa 44.123.926 10,469,008 2.5.....91] 961.058 130.110.881) (30.170.88n

BUlin~s-lyp.. Activilies
AqU31ie Cenler 1,180,49) 1,200,670 20,177 20,117
Agribusiness Cenlel'" 172,165 17.189 195.5761 195,H61

Tolal bUJ,;ness-IYP.. lletlvll.les 1.353.258 1.217.859 (7S )99) (15J99)

Tolm· Primary Gov..mm..AI S 45.417.184 S 11.746.1167 S 2.5""913 S 961.058 (30,110,881) (15,)99) (JO,246,2116)

Componlent Units:
Bulloch Counly Board nOle:tJlh S 1,1135,523 5011,5)9 S 1,.300,264 (26,120)
IkYdnpment Authority ofBulloeh County 359,045 1,141.206 182.846 S 965007

Tot.al Compon~nl Unlt5 2.19.\,568 S 1,649,745 S 1483.110 (26,120) 965,007

General Rev~nuu
Property taus 11,865,610 11,865,610
S:tJes liIXC;S IO,568,1:!4 10,568,124
Insurunec premium liIX 1,449,973 1,449,973
Other lllJu:s 896,572 896,572
Gtlin on 5oa1e ofCIIpitallUSe:ts 2411,625 248,625
Inlen:st earned 1,516,1189 22,651 1,539,540 15,650
Miscellaneous 509.18-1 509.1114

Toilli G..oeral Re>'tnocs 21,055,511 22,651 21,078,2211 15,650

Transfers 36.020 (360201

Tnlal General Rc\'Cftu.c.s:md Tnnsfcrs 21,091.591 (I)J691 27.0711,228 15,650

Cb.nltle ill N..t Al.IeLJ (3,019,290) (88,168) (3,1611,058) (26,7:!0) 980,651

Net !Ul.ets Brt;onin~ or Yur, As Restllled eNo'.. 6) 16.Q.l6.863 11,462.129 84.509.592 J.]64,764 11,46),504

Net !U,ets Eod orv...r S 12.967,573 S 8.373,961 S 81341.534 J.])S,Q.l4 S 9,444.161

See accompanying noles \0 the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNOS
JUNE 30. 2007

Other Tolal
Governmental Governmental

General SPLOST 89 SPLOST 97 SPLOST 02 SPLOST 07 Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash $3,821,776 $ 696,078 $15,050,860 $ 7,171,166 $ 1,589,674 $28,329,554
ReceivnbJes:

Tn..xcs 373,635 373,635
Intergovernmental 202,225 939,260 10,352 1,151,837
Other 280,686 2,755 358,121 641,562

Due from olher funds , 587,821 10,352 368,435 966,608
Due from component unit )]4,450 134,450
Prepaid items 264,072 3,347 267,419
Inventories 52,233 52,233

TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,664,665 $ 696,078 $16.003.227 $ 7.171,166 $ 2.382.162 $31,917.298

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 791,222 S 1,257,468 S 673,734 $ 252,068 S 2,974,492
Accrued payroll 396,575 118,592 515,167
Due to other funds 30,124 54,414 6,470 465,161 556,169
Deferred revenue 281,475 281,475
Olher 68.814 16.086 84.900

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,568.210 1,311,882 680.204 851,907 4,412,203

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for prepaid items 264,072 3,347 267.419
Reserved for Jones Nature TroiJ and

for Oenley Memorial 57,753 57,753
Unreserved:

Undcsignated, reported in:
Gcnerol fund 3,832,383 3,832,383
Special revenue funds 1,469,155 1,469,155
Capiull projects funds S 696,078 14,691,345 6.490.962 21,878.385

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 4,096,455 696,078 14,691.]45 6.490.962 1.5]0.255 27,505.095

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 5,664,665 $ 696,078 S 16,00],227 S 7.171.166 S 2.382.162 $31,917.298

See accompanying note to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2007

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are, different because:

~

$ 27,505,095

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds:

Property taxes

$ 165,592,274
(105,303,131) 60,289,143

275,850

Interfund receivables and payables between governmental funds

are reported on the fund balance sheet but eliminated on the
government-wide statement of net assets:

Interfund receivables
lnterfund payables

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs
of the employee health self insurance program to individual funds,
Certain assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included
in the governmental activities column in the statement of net assets

Liabilities, including capital leases, notes payable and compensated
absences are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds but are reported on the
statement of net assets:

$ 556,169
(556,169)

48,207

Capital leases payable
Notes payable
Compensated absences

Net Assets Of Governmental Activities

$ (14,094,260)
(600,730)
(455,732) (15,150,722)

$ 72,967,573

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAlANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Olller Talat

Gavemlllcmal Gavernmemal

General SPLOST89 SPLOST 97 SPlOST02 SPLOST07 Funds Funds

REVENUES

Taxes S 14,305,719 5 t0,568,124 S 43,939 524,917,782

Licenses and pennits 711,577 711,577

Charges for services 3,994,173 3,255,146 7,249,319

Fees, fines and forfeitures 1,852,121 251,853 2,103,974

Inlcrgovcmmcntal , 2,548,875 S 32,166 472,140 296,906 3,350,087

Inleresl 304,262 7,192 S 35,847 721,237 S 410,508 37,843 1,516,889

Other 509,784 63,005 475,077 1,047,866

TOlat revenues 24,226,511 39,358 35,847 11,824,506 410,508 4,360,764 540,897,<194

EXPENDITIJRES

Current
General govcmment 3,501,091 3,501,091

Judicial 2,444,417 2,444,417

Publie safety 11,284,627 1,533,669 12,818,296

Public works 2,546,518 70,484 2,617,002

Sanilalion 1,816,846 1,816,846
Hcallh and welrare 259,068 259,068

Reerealion 3,182,491 3,182,491

Libraries 475,000 475,000

Airport 525,819 525,819

Housing and development 839,588 13,73) 853,321

Capital outlay

General govenullent 66,175 66,175

Judicial 30,040 30,040

Public sarety 339,361 2,'194,697 110,828 2,944,886

Sanilation 41,250 41,250

Public works 474,704 1,537 2,392,377 2,868.618

Recreation 702,349 200,817 903,166

Librarics 55,333 55,333

Airport 106,11 ) 106,111

Housing and development 1,327,308 133,559 1,460,867

Debt service:
Principal 449,436 178,843 555,218 38,986 1,122,483

Interest 137,523 64,947 70,789 398,178 3,025 674,462

Intergovernmental 722,979 4,533,554 5,256,533

Tolal expendilures 22,660,247 718.494 42,787 10,178,615 2,892,875 7,630,257 <14,123,275

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,566,264 (679,136) (6,940) 1,645,891 (2,482,367) (3,269,493) (3,225,781)

onlER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 78,749 3,315,510 3,394,269

Transfers alii (3,286,140) (51,095) (3,337,235)

Proceeds rrom cnpitallcnses 900,000 900,000
Sale of capitnl nssels 240,706 35,725 276,431

Total other financing soun:es (uses) (2,966,685) 900,000 3,300, ISO 1,233,465

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (1,400,421) (679,136) (6,9'10) 2,545,891 (2,482,367) 30,657 (1,992,316)

FUND BALANCES, JULY I, 2006 5,496,876 679,136 703,018 12,145,454 8,973,329 1,499,598 29,497,411

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2007 S 4,096,455 S S 696,078 S14,691,345 56,490,962 51,530,255 S27,505,095

Sec accompanying notes 10 the basic financial stalements
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2007

Net Change In Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities nrc different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those nssets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capitalized capital outlay exceeded
depreciation expense in the current period.

Depreciation expense
Capital outlay

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds.

Property taxes:
Deferred @ 6/30/07
Deferred @ 6/30/06

Elimination of transfers between governmental funds:
Transfers in
Transfers out

Governmental funds do not report the cost of disposed capital assets but the cost
is reported on the statement of activities.

The internal service fund used by management to charge the costs of the employee
health insurance program to individual funds is not reported in the government-wide
statement of nctiviites. Governmental fund expenditures and related internal service
fund revenues are eliminated.

Other financing sources for the inception of capital leases are reported on the fund
level operating statement but are reported as a liability ort the government-wide
financial statements.

Repayment of notes and capital leases principal is an expenditure in \he governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-tenn liabilities in the statement
of net assets.

Compensated absences reported in the statement of activities. do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Liability @ 6/30/07
Liability @ 6/30/06

Change In Net Assets of Governmental Activities

$ (8,075,885)
7,223,479

275,850
(413,353)

3,358,249
(3,358,249)

(455,732)
372,169

$ (1,992,316)

(852,406)

(137,503)

(27,806)

(308,179)

(900,000)

1,222,483

(83,563)

$ (3,079,290)

l
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

-25-



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

12,464,524 S 12,003,113 S
192,000 222,975

1,480,500 1,449,973
585,000 629,658
551,000 711,577

3,572,950 3,994,173
1,717,500 1,852,121
1,443,941 2,548,875

188,000 304,262
507.735 509,784

22,703,150 24,226,511

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property
Alcoholic beverage
Insurnntc premium
Other

Licenses and pennits
Cbarges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other

Total revenues

Original
and Final
Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

(461,411)
30,975

(30,527)
44,658

160,577
421,223
134,621

1,104,934
116,262

2,049

1,523,361

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government:
County government
Elections
General government buildings
Risk mnnagement/Genernl insurance
Tax assessor
Tax commissioner

Total general government

Judicial:
Clerk of Courts
Superior Court
State Court
District Attorney
Indigent defense
Magistrntc Court
Probnte Court

Totaljudicilll

Public safety:
Animal conlrOl
Animal shelter
Coroner
County correctional
Public safety administration
Probation
Emergency medical service
Fire protection
Jail
Rescue
Sheriff

Total public safety

1,649,979 1,172,473 477,506
155,933 148,750 7,183
520,432 572,982 (52,550)
416,000 415,056 944
765,186 713,389 51,797
483,632 478,441 5,191

3.991,162 3,501,091 490,071

603,248 688,399 (85,151)
274,000 278,642 (4,642)
349,980 347,675 2,305
162,500 162.500
300,000 305,642 (5,642)
475,442 463,687 11,755
234,974 197,872 37,102

2,400,144 2,444,417 (44,273)

70,975 77,528 (6,553)
139,309 159,516 (20,207)
32,212 35,392 (3,180)

1,579,684 1,615,246 (35,562)
132,861 138,131 (5,270)
381,082 378,519 2,563

1,763,057 1,870,111 (107,054)
122,642 465,715 (343,073)

3,413,288 3,163,180 250,108
27,275 27,924 (649)

3,103,574 3.353.365 (249,791)
10.765.959 11,284,627 (518,668)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statemenls.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Public works:

Roads $ 1,935,725 $ 2,220,731 $ (285,006)
Fleet maintenance 269,741 325,787 (56,046)

Tblnl public works 2,205,466 2,546,518 (341,052)

Health and welfare:
Health department 160,900 160,900
Other health and welfare 93,770 98,168 (4,398)

Total health nnd welfare 254,670 259,068 (4,398)

Libraries 475,000 475,000
475,000 475,000

Housing and development:
Agricultural resources 158,802 161,377 (2,575)
FOfCStry commission 10,012 10,489 (477)
Building inspections 255,832 299,771 (43,939)
Planning nnd zoning 190,070 87,436 102,634
Code enforcement 57,883 69,721 (11,838)
Economic development 270,131 210,794 59,337

Tolal housing and development 942,730 839,588 103,142

Debt service:
Principal 422,675 449,436 (26,761)
Interest 132,194 137,523 (5,329)

Total debt service 554,869 586,959 (32,090)

Intergovernmental - Bulloch County Board of Education 668,000 722,979 (54,979)

Total expenditures 22,258,000 22,660,247 (402,247)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 445,150 1,566,264 1,121,114

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 238,000 136,208 (101,792)
Transfers out (3,360,000) (3,343,598) 16,402
Sale of capital assets 75,000 240,705 165,705

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,047,000) (2,966,685) 80,315

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE .$ (2,601,850) (1,400,421 ) $ 1,201,429

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,496,876

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 4,096,455

See accompanying notes to the basic financial slalemenls.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2007

Governmental
Activities - Internal

Business Type Activities ~ Enterprise Funds Service Fund
Aquatic Agribusiness Employee
Center Center Total Insurance Fund

ASSETS
Current Assets

I
Cash $ 1,198,201 $ 69,408 $ 1,267,609 $ 167,539
Accounts receivable 14,519
Prepaid items 26,860
Due from other funds 38,968

Total Current Assets 1,198,201 69,408 1,267,609 247,886

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets

Land 73,305 255,872 329,177
Buildings and improvements 4,866,247 2,960,644 7,826,891
Machinery and equipment 435,147 3,686 438,833
Less accumulated depreciation (739,112) (295,415) (I,034,527)
Total Capital Assets 4,635,587 2,924,787 7,560,374

Total Assets 5,833,788 2,994,195 8,827,983 247,886

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Claims payable 199,679
Accrued payroll 3,513 1,102 4,615
Due to other funds 428,435 20,972 449,407

Tolal Liabilities 431,948 22,074 454,022 199,679

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 4,635,587 2,924,787 7,560,374
Unrestricted 766,253 47,334 813,587 48,207

Total Net Assets $ 5,4dl,840 $ 2.972,121 $ 8,373,961 $ 48,207

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Governmental
Activities - Internal

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Service Fund
Aquatic Agribusiness Employee

Center Center Total Insurance Fund
OPERATING REyENUES

Charges for services $ 1,200,670 $ 1,200,670

Premiums $ 2,211,775

Rents $ 77,189 77,189

Total operating revenues 1,200,670 77,189 1,277,859 2,211,775

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration 929,875 95,954 1,025,829 330,491
Depreciation 250,618 76,811 327,429

Claims 2,178,721

Total operating expenses 1,180,493 172,765 1,353,258 2,509,212

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 20,177 (95,576) (75,399) (297,437)

NONOPERATING REVENUES

Interest 22,651 22,651 10,272

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 42,828 (95,576) (52,748) (287,165)

TRANSFERS OUT (29,380) (6,640) (36,020) (21,014)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 13,448 (102,216) (88,768) (308,179)

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,388,392 3,074,337 8,462,729 356,386

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ 5,401,840 $ 2,972,121 $ 8,373,961 $ 48,207

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Governmental

Activiitcs· Internal
Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Service Fund

Aquutic Agribusiness Employee

Center Center TOlnl Insurnnce Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 1,200,670 $ 77,589 $ 1,278,259 $ 2,211,775

Cash payments to employees for services (428,972) (31,940) (460,912)

Cash payments for goo'ds and services (530,479) (62,912) (593,391) (357,351)

Cash payments for claims (2,085,761)

Net cosh provided (used) by operating activities 241,219 (17,263) 223,956 (231,337)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Advances from (to) other funds 458,042 20,842 478,884 (48,207)

Transfers out (29,380) (6,640) (36,020) (21,014)

Net cash provided (used) by nancopilot financing activities 428,662 14,202 442,864 (69,221)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (8,260) (3,216) (11,476)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings 22,651 22,651 10,272

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 684,272 (6,277) 677,995 (290,286)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY I, 2006 513,929 75,685 589,614 457,825

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 2007 $ 1,198,201 $ 69,408 $ 1,267,609 $ 167,539

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATlNG ACTIVITIES
Operating income (I05S) $ 20,177 $ (95,576) $ (75,399) $ (297,437)

Adjustments:
Depreciation 250,618 76,811 327,429
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable 400 400 73,427

Prepaid items (26,860)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Claims payable 19,533

Accrued payroll (29,576) 1,102 (28,474)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 241,219 $ (17,263) $ 223,956 $ (231,337)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

-30-



I

I

I

1\

BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2007

ASSETS

Cash

LIABILITIES

Due to other entities and individuals

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2007

Bulloch County, Georgia (the "County") operates under a Commissioner - County Manager fonn of
Govenunent. The County is governed by a board of seven commissioners elected by the voters of the County.

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in confonnity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards,
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. The
County also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or
before November 30, 1989, to its governmental and business-type activities at the government-wide financial
reporting level and to its enterprise funds at the fund reporting level, provided they do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

The most significant of the County's accounting policies are described below.

I-A. Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations that are
included to ensure that the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the County
consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the County.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the County is fmancially accountable. The
County is financially accountable for an organization if the County appoints a voting majority of the
organization's governing board and (I) the County is able to significantly influence the progranls or services
perfonned or provided by the organizations; or (2) the County is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the
organization's resources; the County is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance
the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the County is obligated for the debt of the
organization. Component units also may include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the County in that
the County approves the budget, levies their taxes or issues their debt.

The component unit colunms included on tlle government-wide financial statements identify the financial data
of the County's discretely presented component units. They are reported separately to emphasize that they are
legally separate from the County.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A brief description ofthe County's discretely presented component units follows:

Development Authority of Bulloch County (the Authority) - The Authority was created under Georgia statue
to promote the industrial and economic development of Statesboro and Bulloch County. The County appoints a
majority of the Authority's board members, approves the Authority's budget, and provides a significant portion
of the Authority's revenues. Complete financial statements for the Authority can be obtained from their
administrative office~at:

Development Authority of Bulloch County
102 South Main Street
Statesboro, Georgia

Bulloch County Board of Health - The Bulloch County Board of Health provides health care services and
health education to residents of Bulloch County. The Health Department receives fmancial support from
Bulloch County, Georgia, the State of Georgia and the Federal Government. The County Commission appoints
a majority of the Board of Directors. Complete financial statements for the Bulloch County Board of Health
can be obtained from their administrative office at:

Bulloch County Board of Health
I West Altman Street
Statesboro, Georgia

I-B. Basis of Presentation

The County's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net
assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of
financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements include the statement of
net assets and the statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the County as a
whole. The primary government and the component units are presented separately within these financial
statements with the focus on the primary government. Fiduciary activities are not included at the government
wide reporting level. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities,
generally supported by taxes, grants and the County's general revenues, from business-type activities, generally
financed in whole or part with service charges to external customers.

The statement of net assets presents the financial position of the governmental and business-type activities of
the County and its' discretely presented component units.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the County's governmental activities and for each identifiable activity of the business-type activities
of the County. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function and therefore clearly
identifiable to that particular function. The County does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the
statement of activities.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly
connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions
of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a
distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: (1) charges for services which report fees and other
charges to users of the County's services; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating
activities including -restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the
acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed
restrictions to these program uses. For identifying to which function program revenue pertains, the determining
factor for charges for services is which function generates the revenue. For grants and contributions, the
determining factor is to which function the revenues are restricted.

Other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues of the
County. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each
governmental function and each identifiable business activity is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the County.

Fund Financial Statements - During the year, the county segregates transactions related to certain County
functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the County at tIlis more
detailed level. Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

Major individual governmental funds are reported in separate columns witIl composite columns for non-major
funds. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

Fund Accounting - The County uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is a fiscal
and accounting entity WitIl a self-balancing set of accounts. The City uses three categories of funds:
governnlental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds - Government funds are those through which most governmental functions
typically are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the
purposes for which they mayor must be used. Fund liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be
liquidated. The County reports the difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities as fund balance.
The following are the County's major governmental funds: .

The General Fund - The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those required
to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund's fund balance is available to tile County
for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of the State
of Georgia.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

SPLOST 89, SPLOST 97, SPLOST 02, and SPLOST 07 Funds - These funds account for the
special purpose local option sales tax collected pursuant to a referendum for various capital
improvements within the County. The SPLOST 07 fund is also accounting for the proceeds from
a capital lease to be used for expansion of the county jail. The lease will be repaid with SPLOST
07 funds.

Proprictary 'Funds - Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income,
changes in net assets, financial position and cash flows. The proprietary funds are classified as enterprise funds
and internal service funds. The following are the County's major enterprise funds:

Aquatic Centcr - TIllS fund accounts for the activities at the County's recreational water park at
Mill Creek Regional Park.

Agribusiness Center - This fund accounts for the activities associated with the operation of the
Agribusiness Center building owned by the County.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets. The County's fiduciary funds are
agency funds. These agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve
measurement of results of operations. Constihltional officers use these funds to temporarily hold assets.

I-C. Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the
County are included on the statement of net assets. The statement of activities reports revenues and expenses.

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally
are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
reports the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing
uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental
activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements
therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
government-wide statements and the governmental fund statements.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus on both financial reporting levels. All assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the statements of net assets. The statements of changes in fund net
assets present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net assets. The statement of cash
flows provides information about how the County finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary
activities.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

I-D. Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

At the fund reporting level, the governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting and fiduciary
funds use the accru~ basis of accounting. Proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting at both
reporting levels. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition
of revenue, the recording ofdeferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange Transactions - Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party
gives and receives essentially equal value is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On
the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded when the exchange takes place and in the fiscal year in which
the resources are measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within
the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the County, the phrase "available for exchange transactions" means expected to be
received within 60 days of year-end.

Revenue - Non-exchange Transactions - Non-exchange transactions in which the County receives value
without directly giving equal value in return, include sales taxes, property taxes, grants and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from sales taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxable sale takes place.
Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from
grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specifY the year when the resources are required to
be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the County must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the County on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions
also must be available (i.e., collected within 60 days) before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be susceptible to accrual:
property taxes, sales taxes, interest and federal and state grants.

DeferredlUnearned Revenue - Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition
criteria have been satisfied.

On governmental fund financial statements (i.e., on the modified accrual basis), receivables that will not be
collected within the available period have been reported as deferred revenue (i.e., they are measurable but not
available) rather than as revenue.

Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met (e.g., cash advances) also are
recorded as deferred revenue.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred revenue is reported at the fund financial reporting level but reclassified as "unearned revenue" on the
government-wide statement of net assets, where applicable.

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred. On the modified accrual basis, expenditures generally are recognized in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred and due, if measurable.

"
I-E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a
maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the County.

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices.

Georgia law authorizes the County to invest in the following type of obligations:

• Obligations of the State of Georgia or of any other states
• Obligations of the United States Government
• Obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States Government or United States Government

agency
• Obligations ofany corporation of the United States Government
• Prime bankers' acceptances
• The State of Georgia local government investment pool (i.e., Georgia Fund I)
• Repurchase agreements
• Obligations of the other political subdivisions of the State of Georgia

Receivables

All trade and property tax receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectibles, where applicable.

Interfund Balances

On the nmd financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are
classified as "due from/to other nmds." These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type
activities columns on the statement of net assets, except for any net residual amounts due between governmental
and business-type activities, which are reclassified and presented as internal balances on this statement. These
amounts are ultimately eliminated from the total column on the statement of net assets.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consumable Inventories

On the government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower of cost or market on a first
in, first-out basis and are expensed when'used (i.e., the consumption method).

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2007, are recorded as prepaid
items using the consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid amount and reflecting the
expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed. At the fund reporting level, an equal anl0unt
of fund balance is reserved as this amount is not available for general appropriation.

Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary funds.
These assets generally result from expenditures in governmental funds. The County reports these assets in the
governmental activities colwnn of the government-wide statement of net assets but does not report these assets
in the County fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by proprietary funds are reported both in the
business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets and in proprietary funds'
statement of net assets.
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At the inception of capital leases at the governmental fund reporting level, expenditures and an "other financing
source" of an equal amount are reported at the net present value of future minimum lease payments.

All reported capital assets are depreciated except for land, right-of-ways and construction in progress.
Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Useful lives for
infrastructure were estimated based on the County's historical records of necessary improvements and
replacement. Depreciation is computed using the str'aight-line method over the following useful lives:

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements
during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date received. The
COWlty maintains a capitalization threshold of three thousand dollars. The County's infrastructure consists of
roads and bridges. Improvements to capital assets are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are expensed. Interest incurred
during the construction of capital assets utilized by enterprise funds is capitalized.

Estimated Lives
15-40 years
15-40 years
5-15 years

12-60 years

Description
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Compensated Absences

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees' rights to receive
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will compensate
the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means.

..
The total compensated absences liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary
ftmds report the total compensated absences liability in each individual fund at the fund reporting level.
Governmental funds report the compensated absences liability at the fund reporting level only "when due. "

Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported m the government-wide financial
statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely marmer
and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of these funds. However, compensated
absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements
only to the extent that they are "due for payment" during the current year. Notes and capital leases are
recognized as a liability in the governmental fund financial statements when due.

Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund fmancial reporting level is classified as "fund balance." Fund equity for
all other reporting is classified as "net assets."

Fund Balance - Generally, ftmd balance represents the difference between the current assets and current
liabilities. The County reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a specific future
use or which do not represent available, spendable resources and therefore are not available for appropriation or
expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of ftmd balance that is available for appropriation
in future periods. Designations are management's i~tent to set aside these resources for specific services.

Net Assets - Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation
adopted by the County or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
other governments. All other net assets are reported as unrestricted.

The County applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net assets are available.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary
funds. For the County, these revenues are charges for services for the use of the Aquatic Center, rents collected
for the Agribusiness Center, and premiums collected for the employee insurance internal service fund.
Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or service that are the primary activity of
each fund and include administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this defillition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses
in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment
are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in
governmental funds and after the nonoperating revenues/expenses section in proprietary funds. Repayment from
funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented
on the financial statements (i.e., they are netted).

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statement of activities are
reported as general revenues. Transfers between funds reported in the governmental activities column are
eliminated. Transfers between funds reported in the business type activities column are eliminated. Transfers
between governmental and business-type activities are eliminated from the total column.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information

The County adopts an annual operating budget for the general fund, each special revenue fund and capital
projects fund. The budget resolution reflects the total of each department's appropriation in each fund.

All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for each
adopted annual operating budget generally is the department level within each individual fund. The County
Manager may approve budget transfers within departments. Any change in total to a fund or departmental
appropriation within a fund requires approval of the Board of Commissioners.

During the year, the Board of Commissioners had no budget revisions.

.'

All unexpended annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

Expenditures exceeded appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2007 in the following departments for the
general fund:

General Fund
Current:

General government buildings
Clerk of Courts
Superior Court
Indigent defense
Animal control
Animal shelter
Coroner
County correctional
Public safety administration
Emergency medical service
Fire protection
Rescue
Sheriff
Roads
Fleet maintenance
Other health and welfare
Agricultural resources
Forestry commission
Building inspections
Code enforcement
Debt service - principal
Debt service - interest
Intergovernmental - Bulloch County Board of Education

52,550
85,151
4,642
5,642
6,553

20,207
3,180

35,562
5,270

107,054
343,073

649
249,791
285,006

56,046
4,398
2,575

477
43,939 '

11,838
26,761

5,329
54,979

The overexpenditures in these areas were funded by underexpenditures in other areas and by revenues in excess
of amounts budgeted.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSIDP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following special revenue funds and these overexpenditures were
funded by additional revenues over anlOunts budgeted and/or by available fund balance.

Statesboro/Bulloch County Airport
E-911 fund
Hospital building fund
Jail add-on fee fund
Jail commissary fund
Keep Bulloch Beautiful fund
Parks and Recreation funds
Sherriffs fingerprint fund
Solid waste fund
Streetlight tax districts fund

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS

Overexpenditures
$ 25,502

57,785
133,559
52,008
33,592
2,490

26,589
31,685
58,492

1,622

June 30, 2007, the carrying amount of the County's deposits (checking and certificates of deposit) was
$30,862,620 and the bank balance was $32,882,205. Of the bank balance, $1,914,121 was covered by federal
depository insurance, $30,968,084 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's
trust department or agent in the County's name, and $298,688 was uncollateralized.

Discretely Presented Component Units
The carrying amount of deposits for the Development Authority of Bulloch County was $631,936 and the bank
balance was $631,936 of which $313,865 was covered by federal depository insurance and $318,071 was
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the
Authority's name.

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on propJ:rty as of January 1. Property taxes are billed on or about
October 20th of each year and are payable within sixty days. The County bills and collects its own property
taxes and also collects taxes for the Bulloch County Board of Education, State of Georgia and cities within the
County. Collection of the County's taxes and for the other govemment agencies is the responsibility of the Tax
COlmnissioner's Office, which is accowlted for in an Agency Fund. County property tax revenues at the fund
reporting level are recognized when levied to the extent that they result in current receivables (i.e., collectible in
60 days). For the year ended June 30, 2007, property taxes were levied on August I, 2006, and were due
December 20, 2006.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2007 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2007, consisted of the following:

Interfund balances at June 30, 2007 represent reimbursable expenses and temporary loans. The County expects
to repay all interfund balances witllin one year.

E-911
Solid Waste
Emergency Management Agency
SPLOST 02
Drug Suppression Team
Drug Education Fund
Streetlight Tax Districts
Keep Bulloch Beautiful
Parks and Recreation
StatesborolBulloch County Airport
Hospital Building
Agribusiness Center
Designated Project Fund
Jail Add-On Fee Fund
SPLOST07
Aquatic Center
Hotel/Motel Fund
Juvenile Services
Aquatic Center
CDBG Grant Fund
Parks and Recreation
General

I

I
I
I

I
I
I
I

General

J

Parks and Recreation
SPLOST02
Employee Insurance

Total

Transfers To:
Drug Suppression Team FWld
Parks and Recreation Fund
Solid Waste Fund
General Fund
Other Non-major Governmental Funds

Total

Transfers From:
Non-major

General Governmental
Flmd Funds

$ 350,000
1,877,541 $
1,053,599

$ 51,095
5,000

$ 3,286,140 $ 51,095 $
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Aquatic
Center

29,380

29,380

$ 189,355
65,579

7,752
54,414
45,135

4,806
5,586

11,615
54,572
46,837

4,731
20,972

183
2,813
6,470

60,000
3,963
3,038

368,435
10,352
8,844

30,124

$ 1,005,576



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (Continued)
Transfers From:

Transfers To:
Agribusiness

Center

Employee
Insurance

Fund Total

$ 3,394,269

Drug Suppression Team Fund
Parks and Recreation Fund
Solid Waste Fund
General Fund J

Other Non-major Governmental FWlds
Total

$

$

6,640

6,640

$

$

21,014

21,014

$ 350,000
1,906,921
1,053,599

78,749
5,000

Transfers from the general fund are used prinlarily to help fund deficits in special revenue funds. Transfers to
the general fund from other funds represent reimbursements for indirect costs paid by the general fund.

NOTE 6 - RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR NET ASSETS AND CAPITAL ASSETS FOR
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The County has restated beginning net assets for governmental activities to retroactively record infrastructure
balances constructed prior to fiscal year 2003. The following is the change in the beginning net assets and
capital assets for governmental activities as a result of this restatement:

Governmental
Activities

6/30/06 Ending Net Assets, as previously reported
Adjustment to record infrastructure constructed

prior to fiscal year 2003
7/1/2006 Beginning Net Assets, as restated

Infrastructure
Accumulated Depreciation - Infrastructure
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

$ 58,838,338

17,208,525
$ 76,046,863

Balance
6/30/2006

.As Originally
Reported

$ 12,828,476
1,712,369

43,960,829
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Prior
Period

Adjustment

$ 95,007,397
77,798,871
17,208,526

Balance
7/1/2006

As
Restated

$ 107,835,873
79,511,240
61,169,355



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2007, after adjusting for the prior period described above, was
as follows:

Balance Balance

7/1/2006 Additions Deductions 6/3012007
Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land , $ 1,745,413 $ 211,075 $ 1,956,488
Construction in progress 2,072,981 3,188,252 $ 1,819,634 3,441,599

Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,818,394 3,399,327 1,819,634 5,398,087

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 23,862,555 112,805 23,975,360
Improvements other than buildings 7,136,644 540,450 7,677,094
Machinery and equipment 16,610,208 1,819,782 894,878 17,535,112
Infrastructure 107,835,873 3,170,748 111,006,621

Total capital assets being depreciated 155,445,280 5,643,785 894,878 160,194,187

Total capital assets 159,263,674 9,043,1 I? 2,714,512 165,592,274

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 6,718,757 641,528 7,360,285
Improvements other than buildings 2,064,328 272,304 2,336,632
Machinery and equipment 9,799,994 1,723,586 867,073 10,656,507
Infrastructure 79,511,240 5,438,467 84,949,707

Total accumulated depreciation 98,094,319 8,075,885 867,073 105,303,131

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 61,169,355 $ 967,227 $ 1,847,439 $ 60,289,143

Governmental activities depreciation expense:

General government

Judicial

Publ ic safety

Public works

Sanitation

Health and welfare

Recreation

Libraries

Airport

Housing and development

Total governmental activities depreciation expense
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$ 282,875
202,421
826,219

6,192,891
105,939
115,095
221,106

794
111,382

17,163

$ 8,075,885



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2007 for the County's enterprise funds was as follows:

Balance Balance
7/1/2006 Additions Deductions 613012007

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 329,177 $ 329,177

.I

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 6,643,973 $ 3,215 6,647,188
Improvements other than buildings 1,179,703 1,179,703
Machinery and equipment 430,572 8,261 438,833

Total capital assets being depreciated 8,254,248 11,476 8,265,724

Total capital assets 8,583,425 11,476 8,594,901

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 466,133 198,005 664,138
Machinery and equipment 78,745 48,309 127,054
Improvements other than buildings 162,220 81,115 243,335

Total accumulated depreciation 707,098 327,429 1,034,527
Business-type activities captial

assets, net $ 7,876,327 $ (315,953) $ 7,560,374

NOTE 8 - CAPITAL LEASES

The County has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition and construction of various
equipment and buildings costing $17,729,910. As of June 30, 2007 approximately $7,207,000 of the capital
lease proceeds were not spent. These lease agreements qualitY as capital leases for accounting purposes and,
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their
inception.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - CAPITAL LEASES (Continued)

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under these capital leases, and the present value
of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2007:

Year ending June 30
2008
2009
2010 ,
2011
2012
2013-2017
2018-2021

Total minimunl lease payments
Less amount representing interest

Present value of future minimum lease payments

NOTE9-NOTEPAYABLE

$ 2,050,982
2,404,480
2,095,736
1,884,424
1,205,998
4,617,494
3,664,004

17,923,118
3,828,858

$ 14,094,260

Notes payable at June 30, 2007 consisted of a note payable to the Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority
(GEFA) for expenditures incurred related to the construction of a water tank and the extension of water and
sewer lines to the Gateway Industrial Park. The loan requires quarterly payments of$21,042, including interest
at 5.12 percent through January 1,2016. The County has entered into an agreement with the City of Statesboro
by which the City has agreed to reimburse the County for each required payment on this GEFA loan. The loan
had an outstanding balance of$600,730 at June 30, 2007.

As of June 30, 2007, arumal debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year ending
June 30

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

2013-2016

Principal
$ 55,914

58,832
6),903
65,133
68,533

290,415

$ 600,730

-47-

Interest
$ 29,695

26,777
23,706
20,476
17,076
30,620

$ 148,350

Total
$ 85,609

85,609
85,609
85,609
85,609

321,035

$ 749,080
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

Balance Balance Amounts
July I, June 30, Due In
2006 Additions Reductions 2007 One Year

Compensated absences
payable $ 372,169 $ 83,563 $ 455,732 $ 91,146

Capital leases payable 14,363,602 900,000 $ 1,169,342 14,094,260 1,446,735
Notes payable 653,870 53,140 600,730 55,914

" $15,389,641 $ 983,563 $ 1,222,482 $15,150,722 $ 1,593,795

The compensated absences liability will be paid from the fund from which the employees' salaries are paid
which is primarily the General Fund and the Parks and Recreation special revenue fund. The capital lease
obligations will be paid from the General Fund and the SPLOST 02 and SPLOST 07 capital projects funds.
Notes payable will be paid from the General Fund.

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Defined Contribution Plan

Effective November 1, 1994, the County adopted the Bulloch COWlty Retirement Plan. The plan is
administered by CBIZ Insurance and Benefits Services, and covers all employees over the age of 21 who have
completed one year of service. Employees cannot contribute to the plan. Contributions to the plan are at the
discretion of the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners is assigned the authority to establish
and amend any provisions of the plan. During the year ended June 30, 2007, the County contributed $729,516
or 6.5% of eligible salaries to the plan.

Probate Judges' Retirement Fund of Georgia

The Probate Judge is covered under a pension plan which requires that certain sums from marriage licenses be
remitted to the state sponsored pension plan.

Clerk of Superior Court Retirement Fund

The Clerk of Superior Court is covered under a pension plan which requires that certain sums from fees and
fines or bond forfeitures be remitted to the state sponsored pension plan.

Sheriffs Retirement FundlPeace Officers' Annuity and Benefit Fund

The Sheriff and sheriff deputies are covered under separate pension plans which require that certain swns from
fines or bond forfeitures be remitted by the Magistrate Court and Clerk of Superior Court to the state sponsored
pension plans.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Bulloch County Board of Health (component unit)

The employees of the Bulloch County Board of Health participate in the Georgia State Employees Retirement
System. The plan is administered by the State of Georgia, and accumulated benefits and plan assets are not
determined or allocated to the individual participating governmental entities. The retirement contributions for
the year ended June 30, 2007 were $93,361. Contributions are fully vested to employees after 10 years of
continuous service. .'

;

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE INSURANCE FUND

As of May I, 1993, the County established an employee insurance fund (an internal service fund) to cover all
employee health claims. The County makes payments to this fund on a monthly basis based on estimated
premiums provided by the third party administrator to fund this program. Amounts are also withheld from
employees by payroll deduction for dependent coverage and paid to the employee insurance fund. A third party
administrator pays all claims from funds held in the employee insurance fund's bank account. The County has
a co-insuror for claims from one individual within one year exceeding $60,000 and has a maximum annual
liability policy of $2,614,113.

The claims liability of $199,679 reported at June 30, 2007 represents known claims incurred on or prior to June
30, 2007 and an estimate for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Changes in the fund's claims
liability for the last two fiscal years are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30

2006
2007

Claims Liability,
Beginning of

Year
$ 220,000
$ 180,146

Current Year
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates

$ 1,376,907
$ 2,178,721

Claims
Payments

$ 1,416,761
$ 2,159,188

Claims Liability,
End of Year

$ 180,146
$ 199,679

NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County has joined together with other
counties in the state as part of the Association of County Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG) Interlocal Risk
Management Agency Property and Liability Insurance Fund and the Association of County Conunissioners of
Georgia (ACCG) Group Self-Insurance Workers Compensation Fund, a public entity risk pool currently
operating as a common risk management insurance program for member local governments.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

As part of these risk pools, the County is obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as prescribed by the
pools, to cooperate with the pool's agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures established by the
funds, and to report as promptly as possible, and in accordance with any coverage descriptions issued, all
incidents which could result in the funds being required to pay any claim of loss. The County is also to allow
the pool's agents and attorneys to represent the County in investigation, settlement discussions and all levels of
litigation arising out of any claim made against the County within the scope of loss protection furnished by tile

;
funds.

The funds are to defend and protect tile members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed in the
member government contract and in accordance with the worker's compensation law of Georgia. The funds are
to pay all cost taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by the members, all interest accruing
after entry ofjudgment, and all expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation or defense.

Settled claims in the past three years have not exceeded the coverages.

NOTE 14 - CONTINGENCIES

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, in the opinion of the County attorney, the resolution of these matters probably will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the County.

NOTE 15 - JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the County, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the ten county Southeast
Georgia area, is a member of the Coastal Georgia Regional Development Center (ROC) and is required to pay
arumal dues thereto. During its year ended June 30, 2007, the County paid $28,620 in such dues. Membership
in an ROC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which provides for
tile organizational structure of the ROC in Georgia. The ROC Board membership includes the chief elected
official of each county and municipality of tile area. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments
are liable for any debts or obligations of an ROC. Separate financial statements may be obtained from:

Coastal Georgia Regional Development Center
Post Office Box 1917
Brunswick, Georgia 3152 I
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16 - HOTELIMOTEL LODGING TAX

The county has levied a five percent lodging tax. A summary of the transactions for the year ended June 30,
2007 follows:

Percentage of
tax receipts

;

Lodging lax receipts

Disbursements to the:

Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau
for promotion of tourism

Statesboro Arts Council for performing
arts center

County for administrative costs

Total

$ 13,733

(10,437)

(2,610)

(686)

$

76.0%

19.0%

5.0%

All expenditures were for promotion of tourism as required by O.C.G.A. 48-13-41.
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBlNING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30. 2007

Statesboro! Drug Emergency
Bulloch CDBG Designated Drug Suppression MalUlgcment HotcU Hospilal
County Grnnt Proj~ls Education To"'" E-911 Agency Greenspace MOICI Tact Building

Aimort Fund Fund Fund FW>d Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS

Cash S 188,103 S 71,912 S 64,600 S 65,909 S 158,556 S 25,953 S 20,274 S 3,662 S 488.013
Intergovernmental receivable S 10,352
Accounts receivable 47,077 1,682 206,762 1,394
Prepaid ilems
Inventories 52,233
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS S 287,413 S 10,352 S 73.594 S 64.600 S 65.909 S 365,318 S 25.953 S 20.274 S 5,056 S 488.013

LlABlLlTrES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:

Accounts P<lYllble S 48,113
Accrued P<l)TOtl
Due to other funds 46,837 S 10,352 S 183 S 4,806 S 45,135 S 189,355 S 7,752 S 3,963 S 4,731
Other

Total liabilities 94,950 10,352 183 4,806 45,135 189.355 7.752 3.963 4.731
Fuod balance:
Rcscrvcd for prepaid items
RescJVed for Jones Nature Trail and

for Oertley Memorial
UnrescJVed,undesignlited 192,463 73.411 59.794 20.774 175,963 18.201 S 20,274 1,093 483.282

Tolal fund balance 192,463 73,411 59,794 20,774 175,963 18.201 20,274 1,093 483.282

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE S 287,413 S 10,352 S 73,594 S 64,600 S 65.909 S 365.318 S 25,953 S 20.274 S 5.056 S 488.013
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BULLOCH COUNTY1 GEORGIA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNOS
JUNE 30, 2007

Total
Keep Streetlight Nonmajor

Jail Juvenile Bulloch PilIks and Sheriffs SherifI's Solid Tax Special
Jail Add·On Commissary Services Beautiful Rccrcation Confiscated Fingerprint Wastc Districts Revenuc

Fee Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Assets Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS

Cash $ 30,391 $ 38,358 $ 12,107 $ 94,274 $ 247,235 $ 11,521 $ 25,520 $ 43,286 $ 1,589,674
Intergovernmental receivable 10,352
Accounts receivable 35,627 $ 65,579 358,121
Prepaid items 3,347 3,347
Inventories 52)33
Due from other funds 368,435 368,435

TOTAL ASSETS $ 30,391 $ 38358 S 12,107 $ 94.274 $ 654,644 $ 11.521 S 25.520 S 65,579 S 43,286 S 2.382,162

L1ABlLmES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 202.086 S 1,869 S 252,068
Acerued payroll 118,592 118,592
Due 10 other funds S 2,8Il S 3,038 $ 11,615 63,416 S 65,579 S 5,586 465,161
Other 16.086 16,086

Total liabilities 2.813 3,038 11.615 400,180 1.869 65,579 5.586 851.907
Fund balance:

Reserved for prepaid items 3,347 3,347
Rescrved for Jones Nature Trail and

for Oertley Memorial 57,753 57,753
Unrescrvcd,undesignotcd 27.578 S 38,358 9.069 82,659 193.364 S 11,521 23,651 37,700 1,469,\55

Total fund balance 27,578 38,358 9,069 82.659 254,464 \1.521 23,65\ 37,700 1,530.255

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE S 30,391 S 38,358 S 12.107 S 94.274 $ 654,644 S 11,521 S 25,520 S 65,579 S 43,286 S 2.382.162
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGL\
COMBlNlNG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1007

Statesboro! Drug Emergency
Bulloch eDBO Designated Drue Suppression Management Hotel! Hospital
County Grnnt Projects Education Team E-911 Agency Greenspncc Motel Ta..x Building

Airport Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES

Taxes S n,733
Charges for services S 443,975 S 981,871
Fees, fines and forfeitures S 31,454 S 19,359
Intergovernmenlal S 38,718 2,814 S 24,951
Interest 682 578 150 1,142 8. S 181 S 3,220
Olher 88,043 S 33,585

Total revenues 532,700 38,728 33,585 32,032 22,32) 984,013 25,037 181 13,733 3,220

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Airpon 525,819
Public safcly 1,705 37,162 336,078 881,578 29,986
Roads 38,728
Recreation
S3nitl1tion
Housing and dcvdopmem 13,733

Capitl1l outlay:
Public safety 39,501 7,180
Recreation
Housing and development 133,559

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Totnl expenditures 525,819 38,728 41,206 37,162 343,258 881,578 29,986 13,733 133,559

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 6.881 (7,621} (5.130) (320,935) 102.435 (4,949) 181 (130,339)

OrnER FINANCING SOURCES
Sale of Cllpil4ll assets 35,725
Trnnsfers in 350,000 5,000
Trnnsfcrs out (22.273) (2,45?} (1.476} m.II.) (1.658)

T0131 othcf financing soun:cs (uses) 13,452 (2,457) (1..76) 350,000 (18.1141 3,342

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 10,333 (10,078) (6.606) 29,065 84,321 (1.607) 181 (130,339)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNTNG OF
YEAR 171,130 83,489 66,400 (8.291) 91.642 19.808 20,093 1,093 613.611

FUND BALANCES. END OF YEAR S 192,463 S 73,411 S 59,794 S 20,774 5 175,963 S 18,201 S 20,274 S 1,093 S 483,282
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGiA
COMBINlNG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN fUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE RJNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2007

Total
Kcep .. Streetlight Nonmajor

Jail Juvenile Bulloch Parks and Sherin's Sherin's " Solid Ta' S~ial

Jail Add-On Cammissary Services Beautiful Recreation Confiscated Fingerprint Wnste Districts Revenue
Fcc Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Assets Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

REVENUES
Taxes S 30,206 S 43,939
Charges for services S 68,355 SI,316,707 $ 39,995 S 403,243 3,255,146
fees, fines and forfeitures S 186,929 S 3,850 S 10,261 251,853
Intergovernmental S 99,649 5,156 125,608 296,906
Interest 259 743 29,921 '60 321 37,&43
Other 14.784 147.180 191.485 475,077

Total revenues 187,188 68,355 3.850 115.176 1,498,964 10.261 40,555 720.336 30,527 4,360,764

EXPENDITURES
Current;

Airport 525,819
Public safety 199,508 4,445 11,522 31,685 1,533,669
Roads 31,756 70,484
Recreation 3,182,491 3,182,491
S;milntion 103,968 1,712,878 1,816,846
Housing and devc:lopment 13,733

Capilal outlay:
Public safety 64,147 110,828
Recreation 200,817 200,817
Housing and development 133,559

Debt service:
Principal 38,986 38,986
Int~resl 3,025 3,025

TOlal ~xpcndilures 199,508 68.592 103,968 3,425.319 11.522 31,685 1,712,878 31,756 7,630,257

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (12.3"'0) (237) 3,850 J1.208 (1,926,355) ( 1.261) 8,870 (992,542) (1.229) (3,269,493)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital nssets 35,725
Trnnsfer:s in 1,906,921 1,053,599 3,315,520
Transfers out (2,813) (2,304) (51.095)

Total other financing sources (uses) (2.813) (2,304) 1,906,921 1.053.599 3.300.150

NET CHANGE IN RJND BALANCES (15,133) (237) 3,850 8,904 (19,434) (1,261) 8,870 61,057 (1,229) 30,657

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF
YEAR 42.711 38.595 5.219 73,755 273,898 12.782 14,781 (61.057) 38,929 1.499,598

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR S 27,578 S 38,358 S 9.069 S 82,659 S '54,464 $ 11.521 S 23,651 S 37,700 1.530.255
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATESBORO/BULLOCH COUNTYAIRPORT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services $ 435,863 $ 443,975 $ 8,112
Interest 500 682 182
Other 88,600 88,043 (557)

Total revenues 524,963 532,700 7,737

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Airport 500,3 I7 525,819 (25,502)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 24,646 6,881 (17,765)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets 35,725 35,725
Transfers out (29,425) (22,273) 7,152

Total other financing sources (uses) (29,425) 13,452 42,877

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (4,779) 20,333 25,112

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 172,130 172,130

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 167,351 $ 192,463 $ 25,112
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
CDBG GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

REVENUES ,
Intergovernmental

EXPENDITURES
Capital:

Roads

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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Original and
Final Budget

$ 500,000

500,000

Actual

$ 38,728

38,728

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

$ (461,272)

461,272



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

DESIGNATED PROJECTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance

Original and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)
~

REVENUES

Telephone commissions $ 35,000 $ 33,585 $ (1,415)

Total revenues 35,000 33,585 (1,415)

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safety 73,000 1,705 71,295

Capital outlay:

Public safety 25,625 39,501 (13,876)

Total expenditures 98,625 41,206 57,419

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (63,625) (7,621) 56,004

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers out (2,704) (2,457) 247

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (66,329) (10,078) 56,251

I FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 83,489 83,489

I
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 17,160 $ 73,411 $ 56,251

I
I
I
I
I
I
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
DRUG EDUCATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

REVENUES
Fees, fines and forfeitures
Interest

Total revenues

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 26,650 $ 31,454 $ 4,804
200 578 378

26,850 32,032 5,182

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

93,518

(66,668)

(1,103)

(67,771)

66,400

37,162

(5,130)

(1,476)

(6,606)

66,400

56,356

61,538

(373)

61,165

I

I

I
I
I

I

I

I

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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$ (1,371) $ 59,794 $ 61,165



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

DRUG SUPPRESSION TEAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Variance

and Final Positive

" Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Fees, fines and forfeitures $ 10,000 $ 19,359 $ 9,359

Intergovernmental 2,814 2,814

Interest 150 150

Total revenues 10,000 22,323 12,323

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safety 352,755 336,078 16,677

Capital outlay:

Public safety 7,245 7,180 65

Total expenditures 360,000 343,258 16,742

I
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES

UNDER EXPENDITURES (350,000) (320,935) 29,065

I OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in 350,000 350,000

[ NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 29,065 29,065

I FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR (8,291 ) (8,291)

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ (8,291 ) $ 20,774 $ 29,065

I
I
I
,

I
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
E-911 SPEClAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Variance

and Final Positive

, Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Charges for services $ 844,580 $ 982,871 $ 138,291

Interest 1,100 1,142 42

Total revenues 845,680 984,013 138,333

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safety 823,793 881,578 (57,785)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 21,887 102,435 80,548

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers out (16,887) (18,114) (J ,227)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 5,000 84,321 79,321

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 91,64? 91,64?

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 96,642 $ 175,963 $ 79,321
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Variance

and Final Positive

I
Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 33,451 $ 24,951 $ (8,500)

Interest 249 86 (163)

Total revenues 33,700 25,037 (8,663)

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Public Safety 35,615 29,986 5,629

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (1,915) (4,949) (3,034)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 5,000 5,000
Transfers oUl (3,085) (1,658) 1,427

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,915 3,342 1,427

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (1,607) (1,607)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 19,808 19,808

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 19,808 $ 18,201 $ (1,607)
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
GREENSPACE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

I
I

I
I
I

I

I
I
I

I

I
I
I
I

REVENUES
Interest

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Recreation

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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Original

and Final

Budget

$ 20,093

$ 20,093

, Actual

$ 181

181

20,093

$ 20,274

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

$ 181

181

$ 181



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
HOTEUMOTEL TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes $ 14,277 $ 13,733 $ (544)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Housing and development - Tourism 14,277 13,733 544

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, 1,093 1,093

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 1,093 $ 1,093
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

HOSPITAL BUILDING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Original and Positive

"
Final Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Interest $ 3,220 $ 3,220

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:

Community development - Old Hospital Project 133,559 (133,559)

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (130,339) (130,339)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 613,621 613,621

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 613,621 $ 483,282 $ (130,339)
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
JAIL ADD-ON FEE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Variance
and Final Positive..,

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES

Fees, fines and forfeitures $ 145,566 $ 186,929 $ 41,363
Interest 259 259

Total revenues 145,566 187,188 41,622

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public Safety - Jail 147,500 199,508 (52,008)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,934) (12,320) (10,386)

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (3,102) (2,813) (289)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (5,036) (15,133) (10,675)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 42,711 42,711

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 37,675 $ 27,578 $ (10,675)
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

JAIL COMMISSARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

REVENUES
I

Original and

Final Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

Charges for services

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safety

Capital outlay;

Public safety

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

$ 35,000

3,000

32,000

35,000

38,595

$ 68,355

4,445

64,147

68,592

(237)

38,595

$ 33,355

(1,445)

(32,147)

(33,592)

(237)

I
I
I
I

I
I
I
I

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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$ 38,595 $ 38,358 $ (237)



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
JUVENILE SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original and

Final Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)
REVENUES J

Fees, fines and forfeitures

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Judicial

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

$ 3,500

3,500

5,219

$ 3,850

3,850

5,219

$ 350

3,500

3,850

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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5,219 $ 9,069 $ 3,850



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
KEEP BULLOCH BEAUTIFUL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Variance
and Final Positive

, Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 99,875 $ 99,649 $ (226)
Interest 743 743
Other 3,750 14,784 11,034

Total revenues 103,625 115,176 11,551

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Sanitation 101,478 103,968 (2,490)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 2,147 11,208 9,061

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (2,147) (2,304) 157

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 8,904 9,218

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 73,755 73,755

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 73,755 $ 82,659 $ 9,218
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
PARKS AND RECREAnON SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Variance

I and Final Positive
.I Budget Actual (Negative)

I
REVENUES

Charges for services $ 1,358,306 $ 1,316,707 $ (41,599)
Interest 14,964 29,921 14,957

[ Intergovernmental 5,156 5,156
Other 60,460 147,180 86,720

Total revenues 1,433,730 1,498,964 65,234

I EXPENDITURES
Current:

I Recreation 3,298,930 3,182,491 116,439
Capital Outlay:

I
Recreation 73,400 200,817 (127,417)

Debt Service:
Principal 23,375 38,986 (15,611)

I
Interest 3,025 3,025

Total expenditures 3,398,730 3,425,319 (26,589)

I DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER
EXPENDITURES (1,965,000) (1,926,355) 38,645

I OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 1,965,000 1,964,380 (620)

I
Transfers out (57,459) (57,459)

Total other financing sources 1,965,000 1,906,921 (58,079)

I
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (19,434) (19,434)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 273,898 273,898

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 273,898 $ 254,464 $ (19,434)

I
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
SHERIFF'S CONFISCATED ASSETS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Original and Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES ,
Fees, fines and forfeitures S 35,000 S 10,261 $ (24,739)

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety 3,000 11,522 (8,522)

Capital outlay:
Public safety 32,000 32,000

Total expenditures 35,000 11,522 23,478

DEFIClENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (1,261) (1,261)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 12,782 12,782

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 12,782 $ 11,521 $ (1,261)
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

SHERJFPS FINGERPRINT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

REVENUES

Charges for services

Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public Safety

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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Original and

Final Budget

$ 14,781

$ 14,781

Actual

$ 39,995

560

40,555

31,685

8,870

14,781

$ 23,651

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

$ 39,995

560

40,555

(31,685)

8,870

$ 8,870



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
SOLID WASTE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Original Variance
and Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Charges for services $ 331,946 $ 403,243 $ 71,297

Intergovernmental 122,000 125,608 3,608

Other 130,440 191,485 61,045

Total revenues 584,386 720,336 135,950

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Sanitation 1,654,386 1,712,878 (58,492)

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER

EXPENDITURES (I,Q70,OOO) (992,542) 77,458

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in 1,070,000 1,053,599 (16,401)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 61,057 61,057

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR (61,057) (61,057)

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ (61,057) $ $ 61,057
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

STREETLIGHT TAX DISTRICTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

..
"REVENUES

Taxes

Interest

Total revenues

Original Variance
and Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 30,134 $ 30,206 $ 72

321 321

30,134 30,527 393

I
I
I

I
I
I

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public works - Street lighting

Total expenditures

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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30,134

30,134

38,929

$ 38,929

31,756

31,756

(1,229)

38,929

$ 37,700

(1,622)

(1,622)

(1,229)

$ (1,229)



BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2007

Emergency
Tax Fire Probate Clerk of Magistrate Medical

Commissioner Dislrict Court Courts Court Sheriff Service Probation Total
ASSETS
Cash S 52,276 S 171,993 S 8,547 S 596,887 S 2,401 S 140,942 S S 124,872 S 1,097,918

LIABILITIES
Due to other entities and individuals S 52,276 S 171,993 S 8';47 S 596,887 S 2,401 S 140,942 S S 124,872 S 1,097,918
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA
SCHEOULE OF PROJECTS PAID WITH SPECIAL

PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

SPlOST 89 Fund
Estimated

Original Current E.wenditurcs Percentage
Estimated Estimated Prior Current of

Proiect Cost Cost Years Year Totnl Completion
Recreation $ 1,000,000 I 1,872,615 $ 1,872,615 $ 1,872,615 100%
RO[ld improvements 3,500,000 15,286,418 14,600,090 S 686,328 15,286,418 100%
Solid wilsIe disposnJ 4,000,000 4,059,358 4,059,358 4,059,358 100%
Courthouse construction/renovation 1,500,000 4,683,049 4,683,049 4,683,049 100%
Jail

,;'
2,000,000 2,559,915 2,559,915 2,559,915 100%

Public safety program 1,000,000 1,351.533 1,351,533 1,351,533 100%
Regionallibrmy construction!

renovation 606,000 636,142 636,142 636,142 100%
Wastewater lmntmcnt 3,000,000 3,500,352 3,500,352 3,500,352 100%
Airport tenninal nnd olher

airport improvements 400,000 590,327 590,327 590,327 100%

$ 17,006,000 I 34,539,709 S 33,853,381 I 686.328 S 34,539,709 100%

SPLOST 97 Fund
Estimated

Original Current E.wcnditurcs Pcrcenlage
Estimated Estimated Prior Current of

Project Cost Cost Years Yenr Total Completion
Road improvements $ 7,420,000 I 11,890,810 $ 11,890,810 $ 11,890,810 100%
City fire 250,000 230,596 230,596 230,596 100%
City patrol cars 200,000 196,722 196,722 196,722 100%
Solid waste 12,250,000 12,250,000 12,178,321 S 41,250 12,219,571 99.8%
Public safety ~ communications 2,000,000 1,999,999 1,999,999 1.999,999 100%
Airpon 500,000 518,322 518,322 518,322 100%
Arts center 1,030,000 1,030,000 1,030,000 1,030,000 100%
Recrcotion 2,000,000 2,830,973 2,830,973 2,830,973 100%
Public safety 850,000 949,683 949,683 949,683 100%
Agribusiness center 2,000,000 3,000,410 3,000,410 3,000,410 100%
Brooklet - water/sewer system 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 100%
Portnl - solid wa.ste 80,000 106,073 106,073 106,073 100%
Register· roads and streets 20,000 20,001 18,464 1,537 20,001 100%
Ponal . drainage 50,000 34,446 34,446 34,446 100%
Voting precinct 50,000 50,002 50,002 50,002 100"/0
Georgia state patrol 500,000 725,000 725,000 725,000 100"/0
Water/sewer system 5,300,000 5,300,000 1,126,611 1,126,611 21.3%

S 35,000,000 $ 41,633,037 $ 37,386,432 $ 42,787 S 37,429,219 89.9%
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BULLOCH COUNTY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS PAID WITH SPECIAL
PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3D, 2007

SPLOST 02 Fund
Estimated

Original Current Expenditures Percentage
Estimated Estimated Prior Current of

Project Cost Cost Vear.; Year Total Completion
Road improvements - County 5,000,000 5,000,000 1,259,758 1,475,830 2,735,588 55%
Solid waste - Air rights - Joint 1,510,000 1,821,656 1,154,652 667,004 1,821,656 100%
Solid wasle - Post c1os~e. Joint 610,000 610,000 200,000 200,000 33%
Communications system - Joint 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,062,759 267,639 1,330,398 89'%
Solid wasle ~ recycling· County 640,000 640,000 0%
Public safety - Sheriff 1,000,000 990,000 422,805 149,328 572,IJJ 58%
Public safely - Rural Fire 900,000 900,000 501,535 255,910 757,445 84%
Public sufety - EMS 600,000 600,000 299,288 67,717 367,005 61%
Public safely - Animal contol 10,000 8,254 550 8,804 88%
Airpon - County 750,000 750,000 423,297 52,009 475,306 63%
Agribusiness Center - County 6,100,000 6,100,000 283,860 105,489 389,349 6%
Parks and rctreation - County 7,000,000 7,000,000 4,786,021 527,578 5,313,599 76%
Industrial park - County 5.500,000 5,500,000 3,155,912 1,221,819 4,377,731 80%
Water/sewer system - County 100,000 100,000 29,780 29,780 30%
Community facilities - County 3,143,000 3,143,000 1,335,553 86,047 1,421,600 45%
Arts center - Statesboro 1,360,000 1,446,932 1,446,932 1,446,932 100010
Municipal building/Police Station-
Statesboro 2,140,000 2,362,525 1,596,580 765,945 2,362,525 100%

Public safety vehicles - Stlltesboro 500,000 500,000 163,674 100,000 263,674 53%
Water/sewer system - Statesboro 5,000,000 5,000,000 971,023 195,056 1,166,079 23%
City streets, etc. - Statesboro 5,000,000 5,000,000 860,467 2,264,128 3,124,595 62%
Municipal building - Brooklet 350,000 420,000 348,135 348,135 83%
Cultuml facility - Brooklet 75,000 5,000 0%
Water system - Brooklet 230,000 230,000 44,730 39,480 84,210 37%
City streets, etc. - Brooklet 205,000 222,649 91,469 131,180 222,649 100%
Solid waste - Portal 50,000 50,000 17,951 17,951 36%
CuhumJ facility - Portal 50,000 50,000 17,635 17,635 35%
Water system - Ponal 200,000 200,000 18,880 124,607 143,487 72%
City streets, etc - Portal 160,000 160,000 116,667 116,667 73%
Water system - Register 27,000 27,000 545 545 2%
Public safely facility - Register 15,000 35,000 23,330 23,330 67%
Recreational areas - Register 15,000 15,000 13,768 13,768 92%
Cultulill facility - Register 45,000 25,000 4,600 16,726 21,326 85%
City streets, etc. - Register 25,000 25,000 15,660 15,660 63%

49,800.000 50.438,762 20.446,092 8,743.470 29,189,562 58%
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners
Bulloch County, Georgia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Bulloch County, Georgia, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise Bulloch County's basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated December 31, 2007. We did not audit the financial
statements of the Bulloch County Board of Health and the Development Authority of Bulloch
COilllty. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Bulloch
COWlty Board of Health and the Development Authority of Bulloch County, is based on the
reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of ,America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Bulloch County's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Bulloch County's intemal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Bulloch County's internal control over financial
reporting.
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial repOlting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects Bulloch County's ability to initiate, authorize,
record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of
Bulloch County's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or
detected by Bulloch County's internal control. We consider the deficiencies described below to
be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.

1. Clerk of Courts-Timely deposits
In previous years' audits, we have noted that checks received from the Sheriff's department
and probation department agency funds were held for several months before being deposited
by the Clerk of Court's office. Although we noted that deposits were made more timely in
fiscal year 2007, there are still instances in which deposits are not made in a timely manner.
Deposits should be made on a daily basis.

County Response: We concur with this finding and we will recommend for the Clerk of
Courts' office to implement procedures to make sure all funds received by that department
are deposited in a timely manner.

2. Clerk of CourtslEMS department-Inadequate bank reconciliations
Inadequate bank reconciliations are prepared for the bank accounts of the Clerk of Courts and
the EMS department. The reconciliations often contain improper reconciling items,
consisting mostly of disbursements made in the following month. We recommend that
proper bank reconciliations be prepared montlliy, in a form that reconciles the balance on the
bank statement to the checkbook balance at each month end.

County Response: We concur with this finding and we will recommend for tile Clerk of
Courts' office and the EMS department to implement procedures and to obtain training as
considered necessary to prepare proper b\ffik reconciliations on a monthly basis.

3. Probate Court-Timely deposits
During our audit we noted that deposits are often not made in a tin1ely manner in the Probate
Court's office. Money should be deposited at least weekly into the appropriate accounts,
regardless of the amount on hand to be deposited.

County Response: We concur with tillS finding and we will recommend for the Probate
Court office to implement procedures to make sure all funds received by that department are
deposited in a timely manner.
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4. Budget amendments
As noted in Note 2 to the fmancial statements, expenditures exceeded appropriations at the
legal level of control for certain general fund departments and certain special revenue funds.
Budget amendments should be made and approved by the Board of Commissioners for any
overexpenditures of the County budget.

County Response: We concur with this fmding and we will implement procedures to better
monitor expenditures at the legal level of control and we will request budget amendments
during the year as needed.

5. Financial reporting process is inadequate for recording the activity in the County's
agency fU)lds and certain special revenue funds
The Cou ty has several agency fi.mds and special revenue funds for which a trial balance
srnnmarizing the annual activity and year end balances is not maintained. Accurate trial
balances are needed on these fi.mds in order for them to be properly included in the County's
financial statements. Also, the anlounts due from agency funds need to be recorded properly
in the general ledger of the general fund and other appropriate funds at year end.

County response: We concur with this finding and we will consult with our auditors on
developing the appropriate procedures to prepare accurate trial balances at year end for our
agency funds and special revenue funds not maintained on our computerized accounting
system.

6. Retainage payable
We noted that retainage payable on a few construction projects was not recorded in the
County's govemmental fimds at June 30, 2007. Construction in progress invoices should be
reviewed at year end to make sure all retainage payable is recorded in the County's financial
statements.

County response: We concur with this fmding, and we will implement procedures to review
invoices for construction in progress to make sure all retainage payable is recorded in the
County's financial statements.

7. Recording of year end receivables/payables for financial statements
The County's procedures to make sure all year end receivables and payables are included in
the financial statements are inadequate. We noted some year end receivables and payables
that were either not recorded or were n;tisstated on the County's general ledger. We also
noted some accruals for receivables that were not separated by type of receivable for
financial statement pmposes (i.e. intergovenullental, due from agency funds, other, etc.)
Many of the adjusting journal entries needed to correct certain receivables and payables were
material to the County's financial statements. .

County response: We concur with this finding and we will implement procedures to make
sure all year end receivables and payables are included in the year end financial statements.
We have recently hired a CFO for the County that will be responsible for overseeing this
function.
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8. Recording of activity in capital lease trust accounts
Capital lease proceeds maintained in trust accounts by the lessor on behalf of the County
until the proceeds are spent by the County are not being accounted for correctly in the
County's general ledger. Monthly statements received for these trust accounts should be
forwarded to the finance department and tlle activity in these accounts should be recorded
monthly in the County's general ledger.

County response: We concur with tllis finding and we will implement procedures to make
sure all activity in capital lease trust accounts are recorded on a monthly basis. The CFO
recently hired by the County will be responsible for implementing these procedures.

9. Preparati!ln of annual financial statements
The Comity's internal controls for preparation of annual financial statements are inadequate
because the County's staff lacks the appropriate understanding and knowledge of generally
accepted accounting principles to prepare the COlmty's [mancial statements and related notes
to the financial statements. Reliance on the outside auditors for proper preparation of the
County's financial statements is not an internal control for the County. The auditors can
assist with ilie preparation of ilie County's armual financial statements, but ilie ultimate
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements belongs to ilie County.

County response: We concur with iliis finding and we have recently hired a CFO for the
County who will be responsible for overseeing the process for preparation of ilie County's
armual financial statements.

10. Inadequate segregation of duties
Many of the Comlty's departments and offices have a small nunlber of people in ilieir offices
performing a variety of accounting duties, some of which may be incompatible. Separating
these duties will improve internal controls over cash and oilier assets and reduce the
possibility of errors and irregUlarities. This may be done wiiliout hiring more personnel. We
recommend iliat the COlUlty review each department with accounting duties to determine
where incompatible duties can be reassigned, if practical, or create a supervisory review of
iliese functions.

County response: We concur with iliis finding and we will try to implement procedures to
improve the segregation of duties in the County's various departments and offices. We will
also attempt to implement compensating controls when feasible to minimize the effects of
iliese control deficiencies.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by Bulloch County"s internal control.

Our consideration of ilie internal control over financial reporting was for ilie limited purpose
described in ilie first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in ilie internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not
necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies iliat are also considered to be material
weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies described above, we consider items 5, 7
and 9 to be material weaknesses.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Bulloch County, Georgia's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

The County's response to the findings identified in our audit is described above. We did not
audit Bulloch County's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of commissioners,
management, the State of Georgia, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

December 31, 2007
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